
City of Swartz Creek 
AGENDA 

Regular Council Meeting, Monday, July 13, 2015, 7:00 P.M. 
City Hall Building, 8083 Civic Drive Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 

1. CALL TO ORDER:

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

3. ROLL CALL:

4. MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES:
4A. Council Meeting of June 22, 2015 MOTION Pg. 24 

5. APPROVE AGENDA:
5A. Proposed / Amended Agenda MOTION Pg. 1 

6. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS:
6A. City Manager’s Report (Agenda Item) MOTION Pg. 2 
6B. Eagle Scout Project Information (Agenda Item)  Pg. 44 
6C. Wireless Lease Extension Offer (Agenda Item)  Pg. 46 
6D. Sewer Lift Station Cost Estimate (Agenda Item)  Pg. 50 
6F. Rental Inspection Forms (Agenda Items)  Pg. 54 
6G. Storm Water Agreement (Agenda Item)  Pg. 65 
6H. Comcast Notification   Pg. 79 
6I. Monthly Reports (Check Run, Budget Report, DPS, Building, Police) Pg. 80 
6J. Bikes on the Bricks Ride Information (Agenda Item) Pg. 111 
6K. Consumers Energy Notifications  Pg. 117 
6L. Clayton Township Master Plan Review Notice  Pg. 121 
6M. Fire Board Notice Pg. 122 
6N. Curb Images-Before and After Pg. 123 
6O. Phone Book Delivery Notice Pg. 130 
6P. Draft Fence Ordinance Amendment & Illustrations Pg. 132 
6Q. Police Auction Memo (Agenda Item) Pg. 138 
6R. Water Rate Notice Pg. 139 

7. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:
7A. General Public Comments

8. COUNCIL BUSINESS:
8A. Eagle Scout Orienteering Project RESO Pg. 12 
8B. Wireless Lease Extension DISC 
8C. Lift Station Upgrade Engineering Proposal RESO Pg. 13 
8D. Rental Inspection Ordinance  RESO Pg. 13 
8E. Storm Water Monitoring Agreement RESO Pg. 20 
6F. Bikes on the Bricks Right of Way Permit  RESO Pg. 21 
6G. Dedication of City Hall  RESO Pg. 22 
6H. Police Vehicle Auction  RESO Pg. 22 
6I. Board of Review Appointment  RESO Pg. 23 

9. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:

10. REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS:

11. ADJOURNMENT: MOTION 

City Council Packet 1 July 13, 2015



 
City of Swartz Creek 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
Regular Council Meeting of Monday, July 13, 2015 - 7:00 P.M. 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members 
FROM: Adam Zettel, City Manager 
DATE:   July 8, 2015 
 

ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS 
 
 RACEWAY STATUS (No Change of Status) 

The raceway has dropped their appeal for 2014, but they have filed for 2015. This is 
great news! Monies that the downtown development authority was encumbering with 
the intention of refunding can now be counted as unrestricted revenues. I suspect the 
strategy is revolving around the marketing of the track, and this will be resolved upon 
sale. For more information pertaining to the appeal, please see prior meeting packets.  
 
Concerning the marketing, there is not much happening as far as we can tell. We held 
off on rezoning because the owner wanted to do some research and work with us on a 
plan, but that simply has not happened. Obviously, we should work with them to the 
extent that they are willing. However, as we move forward with the master plan, I think 
it is clear that we cannot wait for them to come to the table to do what is in the interest 
of the community.  
 

 STREETS (See Individual Category) 
 

 MORRISH ROAD CLASSIFICATION-BRIDGE CAPACITY (No Change of Status) 
Morrish Road has been submitted for classification as a “minor arterial” from a 
“major collector”.  The MDOT is reviewing this and should respond before August. 
 

 MILLER ROAD RESURFACING PROJECT (Update) 
Crews are onsite and are working. The Tallmadge to Dye Road section is complete. 
Crews are finishing curb work on the south side of Miller between Elms and Morrish.  
The Bristol Road cuts will be surfaced when crews are back in town applying 
asphalt to Miller.  
 
There has been some concern about the quality of the curb work that is ongoing. 
Specifically, there are voids, referred to as “honeycombs” on the back of the curbs. 
Images are included in the packet. I have brought this to the attention of the 
engineer and received the following response from Nick Tanton, the site engineer: 
 
Dennis and I met up on site and walked the areas of the new curb and gutter. Eastlund 
poured quite a bit of curb with their curb machine, and there are no consolidation issues to 
note with those areas. We did find some areas of “honeycomb” on the back and front faces 
of curb in the hand set areas. This is very common for hand set curb due to lower slump 
that they usually need to pour the concrete at to actually build the curb and keep it from 
slumping over.  

City Council Packet 2 July 13, 2015



  
The specifications are very vague in regards to this specific issue as well. The specification 
tells to patch “honeycombed” or “voided” areas with type R-2 mortar and remove or 
replace as directed by the engineer. Dennis has informed me that they had already patched 
some areas, but we did find some additional areas that they will be patching today [July 1]. 
I did not find any voids that I would consider to be cause for rejection. In my opinion, the 
areas of concern can be patched to fill the voids, as there is no direct specification telling 
what is actually rejectable [sic] in these cases.  
  
The concern with the “honeycombed areas is that it gets sealed up so there is not water 
penetrating into voids which can ultimately freeze and cause issues with the curb. These are 
the areas that will need to be patched. This is a common practice when placing hand set 
curb and gutter. Ultimately, there are some areas that are well sealed, but may not look as 
good as the top of the curb which will ultimately be the only surfaces that are exposed. I did 
not see any issues on the top of the curb. 
  

I looked at the areas of concern and have included some images of how the mortar 
is applied to seal the curbs. I did not observe any voids on the front of the curbs 
where the structural strength is needed.  
 

 20 YEAR STREET PLAN (Update) 
The state legislature continues to draft budgets to fund road repair. Most plans 
target an increase of $1.1-$1.5 billion, in line with the May ballot proposal.  If this 
holds true and the revenues are distributed accordingly, we can expect such a plan 
to increase funds to the city by about $250,000 per year. However, the proposals 
that are being discussed rely heavily on undefined cuts to the state’s general fund 
(city revenue sharing?), as well as above average revenue increases from income 
and sales taxes.  
 
What the state decides to do (or not do) will have a major impact on funding our 
plan. Once this is evident, we can move forward with a plan to fund whatever 
revenue gap exists. As discussed, this could be any combination of assessments, a 
levy, and a re-apportionment of existing/new state revenues. If the state fails to act 
or does so in a way that has a negligible impact, we may need to decide to move 
forward without consideration of the state’s contribution. 
 
See the May 11 report for prior details. 
 

 2015 STREET BIDS-SCRAP TIRE GRANT (No Change of Status) 
The city is moving forward with engineering of the intersections of Winston and 
Miller, as well as Fairchild and Miller.  We expect this work to be done after school 
releases in 2016. 
 

 WATER – SEWER ISSUES PENDING (See Individual Category) 
 SEWER REHABILITATION PROGRAM (No Change of Status) 

The city is moving forward with relining of portions of the Worchester Drive sewer 
line and inspection of sections of Seymour, Greenleaf, Durwood, Valleyview, 
Birchcrest, Chesterfield, and Chelmsford as approved at the January 26th meeting. 
The scope of work is estimated to cost $146,320. However, there may be some 

City Council Packet 3 July 13, 2015



portions of the project that will require a change order for the purposes of doing a 
partial excavation where lining is not practical. I will be back with more details. 
 

 KWA (No Change of Status) 
The KWA water pipeline held a dedication ceremony on June 17th at their proposed 
water treatment station near Columbiaville.  They are still ahead of schedule and 
under budget.  
 

 STORM SEWER (Update-Agenda Item) 
This draft storm water agreement that was presented to the council earlier this year 
is now in final form, and the county is requesting its approval. The agreement 
enables limited cooperation with the county to perform specific functions related to 
the Phase II Stormwater Regulations. This is done for a pro-rated fee, estimated to 
be $4,200 for this year.   
 
This program is related to state mandates on the regulation of storm water, the 
monitoring of discharge, and the permitting of soil erosion activities. The city has 
been participating for years, and our only other option is to attempt to do this without 
the support of the county. The city looked at this about four years ago, and it was 
found that the economies of scale and expertise offered by the county were worth it. 
I suspect this is the case today and see no reason not to support this agreement. 
 

 WATER LOSS (Update) 
We have identified another commercial account that was responsible for some of 
our water loss. IN addition, we discovered that mid-quarter final reads were not 
included in the retail sale data that we use to calculate water loss. This brings us a 
little bit closer to our goal of 10-12% water loss. We continue to monitor the 
situation. 
 

 WATER RATES (Update) 
I have included a notice of rate change from Genesee County. Effective September 
2, 2015, the rates will go up $0.38 per 100 cubic feet (8%).  This will bring the rate 
that the city pays to $5.13/ccf. We currently charge $5.45/ccf.  
 
We have the typical options available to us. The first is to do nothing and absorb the 
rate increase. This would result in an additional loss of $75,000 to the water fund for 
the current fiscal year and about $100,000 over a twelve month period. Option two: 
we can cover the $0.38/ccf and raise rates to $5.83/ccf (7%).  Option three: the city 
can cover the entire charge, accounting for 10% water loss, and set a rate of 
$5.87/ccf (7.7%). Obviously, the city can find common ground among any of these 
choices, such as splitting the difference and moving forward with a 4% increase. 
Note that every percent increase to the city rate would result in about $1.56 more on 
each bill for a customer using $3,000 cubic feet a quarter ($12.33 for 8%).  
 

 PERSONNEL:  POLICIES & PROCEDURES (Update) 
A committee has been appointed to review the handbook. I say we begin reviewing the 
prepared documents now, even though the attorney’s office has not made comments. I 
will reach out to the committee and distribute the policy after our meeting if there are no 
objections. 

City Council Packet 4 July 13, 2015



 
 4438 MORRISH ROAD (No Change of Status) 

 
Background on this issue is included in the April 13, 2015 report.              
 

 SHARED SERVICES, POLICE DEPARTMENTS (No Change of Status) 
There is a possibility that costs relating to the merger, including legal fees and other 
expenses, may be covered by a third party grant. The city and township presented the 
initiative to a few funding interests on May 26, and the feedback was very positive.  I 
will keep the council informed. We expect to begin drafting a working agreement for 
joint services after the beginning of the new fiscal year. 

 
 SPRINGBROOK EAST & HERITAGE VACANT LOTS (Update) 

Six of the twelve lots in Springbrook East have sold. The association has already been 
reimbursed for these sales. I expect the other six to sell by this time next year, putting 
this totally in our rearview mirror. 
 
The city still owns four lots in Heritage Village. We have no plan for these at this time. 
Perhaps an auction of these lots is in order. In this case, I am not sure if there was an 
intention to share additional revenues with the association or not. The city sold one lot 
in 2014 “at cost.” Purchase agreements with other buyers fell through.  

  
 MEIJER COMMUNITY DONATION (No Change of Status) 

I have contacted Meijer, and they definitely wish to have a public event to 
commemorate their contribution to the community.  Perhaps a recognition of their 
donation along the Veteran’s walk on Fortino Drive would be appropriate during 
Memorial Day.   

 
 WINCHESTER WOODS LOTS (No Change of Status) 

The planning commission is considering this issue as they amend the master plan.  It 
appears that the planned addition of some asphalt millings to the streets will be cost 
prohibitive. We may still need to spend some time and money on these streets. 
Since this is a platted subdivision with public streets, the city is in a position to 
provide access to the lots by owners for maintenance. 
 
Looking at the problem through a larger lens, we need a drainage and infrastructure 
solution for the entire plat. With more lots available through tax foreclosure, this may 
enable the city to have more control over what improvements occur and how they 
are paid for. The more lots the city controls, the more options we have for making 
improvements, providing drainage, and recouping costs.  
 
The original report is included in the April 13, 2015 report. 
 

 NEWSLETTER (No Change of Status) 
The next edition of our community newsletter is expected to be distributed in October. 
Let me know if you wish to supply content or desire to see specific information covered 
in this edition.  
 

 MEDICAL MARIJUANA MORATORIUM (No Change of Status) 

City Council Packet 5 July 13, 2015



The council placed a moratorium on medical marijuana dispensaries and growing 
facilities, effective April 23, 2015. This is a 180 day moratorium that is set to expire at 
the end of October. Among other reasons, the moratorium was put in place to better 
prepare for pending state legislation that would dramatically alter the playing field.  
 
The planning commission will be considering this issue. If legislation is not passed 
soon, we should consider amending the ordinance based upon draft versions or other 
options in lieu of moratoriums.   
 

 RENTAL REGISTRATION AND INSPECTIONS (Update-Agenda Item) 
A final version of this ordinance, along with the administrative forms and procedures, is 
ready. Since, there was not any comment on the draft ordinance and supporting 
documentation at the first meeting in April, it appears we are ready to go.  
 
For the time being, I say we place the “crime free lease addendum” on the back burner. 
If the city feels it is worth it, we can revisit this provision in the future. I simply have not 
found evidence that, as a voluntary program, it has been successful at making rental 
units or neighborhoods safer. At the end of the day, property managers have the same 
options with or without the city’s addendum.  
 

 K9 UNIT (No Change of Status) 
Donations have been coming in strong. The police department may look to place an 
order for a replacement in July or August.  
 

 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT UPDATES (Update) 
The new polices have been implemented in accordance with state law. 
 

 5017 THIRD STREET (Update) 
The sale instruments are undergoing their 30 day public inspection. A resolution for 
execution of those instruments is expected for August 24th.  
 

 OTHER COMMUNICATIONS & HAPPENINGS (Update)  
 

 MONTHLY REPORTS & UPDATES (Update) 
The June DPW, police, building, budget, and check register reports are included. 
Note that most invoices and revenues due the city for June 30, 2015 are not 
reflected in these numbers. These items are normally received during the month of 
July, sometimes in August. In addition, many year-end adjustments still need to be 
recorded. Examples include investment revenue, several state revenues, the 
recording of change in city assets, expenses and revenues that cross fiscal years 
and year-end depreciation expense.  
 

 COMCAST NOTICE (Update) 
They are eliminating two ESPN offerings with new subscriptions.  
 

 PHONE BOOK DELIVERY NOTICE (Update) 
We received this notice to better accommodate the mass drop off of so much paper 
on the curbs in town.  
 

City Council Packet 6 July 13, 2015



 CLAYTON TOWNSHIP MASTER PLAN (Update) 
We received notice that Clayton is reviewing their master plan.  The leadership in 
Clayton has been very good about communicating with the city on planning related 
matters. I am aware of some issues that they want to address on Corunna Road, 
relating to commercial development.  I also suspect that the lands north of Bristol 
Road between Morrish and Elms will be analyzed as well given the relatively new 
improvements to water and sewer, as well as the construction of Meijer. I will 
forward official drafts or notable amendments to the council. If practical, I will look to 
attend some of their meetings on the matter to stay better informed. 
 

 FIRE DEPARTMENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND (Update) 
We received notice that Clayton Township is requesting their half of the $25,290.86 
that the fire department holds for capital improvements. They are within their rights 
to do so. The city is under no obligation or expectation to follow suit. If fact, I 
recommend that we do not.  
 
This fund is in addition to the capital improvement fund that is funded and held by 
the city. Funds accumulate when the fire department does not spend down their 
operating budget as approved by the city and township. While the city can recover 
unspent funds, I believe the practice of maintaining a capital improvement fund is a 
fantastic institutional incentive to encourage fiscal efficiencies (as opposed to a use 
it or lose it model).  
 
On a practical level, this fund comes in handy. Just last year, the fire department 
allocated the capital improvement fund balance of $129,609 to the new Pierce 
engine. Make no mistake, half of that was still the “city’s” money. However, by 
enabling the fire department to capture operation savings and accrue them, it 
reduces the burden on the city on an annual basis, enabling “operating” funds to 
contribute toward capital purchases.  
 
We have been through this before with fire department capital purchases. We can 
pay now or pay later, but we will pay. I think it is easier on the city budget in the long 
run to maintain support for such purchases by encouraging operational savings and 
the existence of this fund. Note that the city balance will be accounted for annually 
to ensure that our contributions are known. 
 

 BOARDS & COMMISSIONS (See Individual Category)  
 PLANNING COMMISSION (No Change of Status) 

The planning commission met on July 7th. They did not perform further work on the 
master plan, having only a few features left to change. Instead, there was 
consensus to move forward with a joint workshop as proposed by the Downtown 
Development Authority (see below). This joint workshop would enable some further 
dialogue on critical issues remaining for the master plan, such as the future of the 
raceway. They believe August 31, or September 1 would be good dates to attempt 
to do so.  
 
The commission also took a first look at an amended fence ordinance that would 
make screening of corner parcel “side yards” much easier. Some adjustments are 

City Council Packet 7 July 13, 2015



proposed and a draft has been included with this week’s packet. I expect this zoning 
change to be recommended to the city council sometime this fall.  
 
The commission received an update on Family Farm & Home, which is noted below. 
 

 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (Update) 
The DDA met on July 9th regarding the potential boundary amendment and 
workshop.  They have finished with the proposed amendments to the DDA 
development and tax increment financing plans that resulted from the boundary 
amendment. That means that we have a plan ready for public inspection at the 
meeting on September 14th. Note that the changes resulting from the addition of the 
Third Street properties amount to revised projections in expected tax increment.  
 
Concerning the workshop on outstanding downtown issues, such as the Fortino 
Property, the DDA concurs with the planning commission on a date, August 31, 
2015. This is a fifth Monday and is a week prior to Labor Day. The idea is to hold a 
public workshop that will NOT function as an official meeting of any city board or 
commission. This will make the setting very informal for the public and officials. It 
also means that no decisions can be made. If the council concurs, staff will look to 
plan and publish this.  
 

 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (No Change of Status) 
There is nothing to report. 
 

 PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION  (Update-Agenda Item) 
The park board met on June 3rd. They had a number of guests, including an Eagle 
Scout candidate. There are two proposed donations for Elms Park. One is for a 
bench from the Beta Sigma Phi sorority, which the city council approved. The other 
is for an orienteering course. The description of the orienteering course is included 
in the packet.  
 
Their next meeting will be September 2nd. 
 

 BOARD OF REVIEW  (No Change of Status) 
There is nothing to report. 
 

NEW BUSINESS / PROJECTED ISSUES & PROJECTS 
 

 WIRELESS LEASE EXTENSION PROPOSAL (Discussion) 
In December of 2005, the city entered into agreement with, at the time, Omnipoint 
Holdings, Inc., for a land lease at 8100 Civic Drive.  This instrument is commonly 
known as the T-Mobile tower lease. The basic terms include land lease of 450 square 
feet, as permitted by site plan review, for a period of six successive five year terms (a 
thirty year lease). Rent started at $1,000 per month and increases by 10% during each 
five year renewal.  
 
The current lease, Crown Castle, is proposing an extension of this lease for an 
additional 30 years, including an option to increase the size of the lease area and a 
signing bonus. I have included their terms and summary letter. The justification for this 

City Council Packet 8 July 13, 2015



is to provide more long term security for the existing tenant. They obviously are 
interested in adding additional tenants as well. The extension of property control is 
essential to doing so. For example, Crown Castle is not going to convince another 
provider to heavily invest in a site if their investment is only secure for 10-15 years.  
 
This lease needs to be approached the way any landlord would approach a lease with 
an existing tenant. The upside of extending is that the tenant is less likely to look 
elsewhere as there term comes due. It is also more likely to result in future rents from 
expansion and co-locators (this is the highest point in the city). The downside is a loss 
of site control for an additional fifty years. What if the city wants to use the land for 
something else in 30 years? 
 
There is no obvious choice here. The terms are, in my opinion, reasonable and in line 
with the market conditions. However, fifty years goes beyond our planning horizon. The 
council should deliberate on this matter.  
 

 LIFT STATION PRJOECT (Resolution) 
The lift station on Cappy Lane is nearing the end of its useful life.  While it remains 
functional and reliable today, the importance of this facility cannot be understated, 
making replacement and/or upgrades necessary before reliability becomes an issue.   
 
This station is responsible for pumping all of the sanitary sewer from Winchester Village 
up and into the sewer interceptor that is owned and operated by Genesee County.  This 
interceptor runs parallel to the Swartz Creek and eventually transports all city sewer to 
the treatment facility on Beecher Road. Without this station, the sewer would have no 
place to go but up, and “up” is into the homes of the village.   
 
Presently, the station is old and outdated, especially as it relates to electrical 
components.  It is also of a ‘can’ configuration, meaning that all components are under 
ground and can only be accessed through “confined space” entry protocols.  In plain 
English, all of the components that require inspection and maintenance are located 
underground in a location that resembles a submarine.  
 
For the past few years, the city has explored a couple options relating to how we 
discharge sanitary sewer from the village. This is because the county interceptor is 
known to operate at capacity during rain events, making backups inevitable for the city 
system.  The preferred option was to pump the discharge north to the new Western 
Trunk Extension that terminates at Miller and Seymour Roads (east intersection). It was 
this prior upgrade that eliminated the need for a lift station at this location. However, the 
county informed us that this line would not be in a better position to accommodate flows 
due to projected capacity. As such, we are left with the less preferred, albeit cheaper 
option, of replacing the station in its current location.  
 
The construction estimate to complete the upgrade is $195,500 on the high end. At this 
time, we are requesting an allocation of $15,042 for design and bidding of the project. 
This is included in the current budget.  
 

 BIKES ON THE BRICKS (Resolution) 

City Council Packet 9 July 13, 2015



Included with tonight’s agenda is information on The Bikes on the Bricks event which 
occurs yearly.  This year’s ride is set to occur on the early afternoon of Saturday, 
September 12th. The bikers will come south on Seymour and head east on Miller, 
heading into Flint. The ride will function much like a funeral procession and take 10-
20 minutes. They have their own police escort and are not requesting a complete 
shutdown.  
 
The chief and I have reviewed their plans and believe they can proceed without any 
formal approvals.  However, the county is requesting an authorization letter to 
enable their own reviews and approvals. This applies to Seymour Road, north of 
Miller as an entry point into the city and as a borderline road. 
 

 DEDICATION OF CITY HALL (Resolution) 
We lost Paul over one year ago. As community members, professionals, and friends we 
have endeavored to find a way to honor his service and dedication to our community. 
Now that the family has had time to begin healing, we approached them about some 
ways that would respectfully and enduringly do so. 
 
A resolution is included with this packet to name city hall the “PAUL D. BUECHE 
MUNICIPAL BUILDING”. At first, Rick and I had reservations about this, since we could 
both picture Paul chuckling and saying, “That’s stupid”. However, Paul’s modesty aside, 
we think he would have liked the gesture and his family appears very supportive of the 
idea.  
 
There is much I could write, but I will stay on point. This appears to be a tasteful and 
appropriate way to honor Paul.  Note that this step is necessary to move forward. A 
dedication with friends, family, and professionals is set for a later date. This step is 
simply a technical requirement to prepare signs and set the ceremony. 
 

 MOSQUITO CONTROL (Update) 
The mosquitos are terrible this year. Since mosquito control has not been a large issue 
in years past, we are in a reactive position to their sudden seizure of our town. There 
are definitely things that can be done if the council believes it necessary. However, the 
first inquiries that we have made indicate that this is a long process, due to regulatory 
procedures, making it unlikely that we benefit from pest control this season. On that 
note, we also do not desire to immediately overreact because of our experience the 
last two weeks.  
 
At this point, we will be meeting with Rose Pest Control the week of July 13th. They 
perform community level pest control services in Genesee County, including Grand 
Blanc Township. They indicate that there are DEQ permits, public engagement 
processes, and risk assessments that must be performed before the application of 
controlling chemicals can ensue. I will report our findings back to the council. 
Hopefully, this will include an estimated level of service, cost, and timeline for 
implementation. Obviously, no action is required. However, residents are beginning to 
inquire about this service so we should look into options. 
 

 POLICE VEHICLE AUCTION (Resolution) 

City Council Packet 10 July 13, 2015



This is another routine bit of business. The police department is retiring the 2009 
Dodge, with light bar, and is requesting the ability to auction this vehicle.  Details are in 
a memo from Mr. Clolinger.  He is recommending we use an online auction site called 
Bidcorp.com, which the city has had much success with recently.  I believe this is 
competitive and transparent method for disposing of larger assets, and the fee is quite 
reasonable.   
 
 

 MAYORAL APPOINTMENT (Resolution) 
There is one appointment for the Board of Review, the board that hears property tax 
appeals, that was missed at the May meeting. In prior years, this would not have been 
a concern since the Board of Review conducts its business in March. However, they 
now conduct special sessions in July and November.  
 
Mr. Robert Brown’s term expired on June 30, 2015. Given his experience and 
willingness, a reappointment to serve in this capacity is recommended for another three 
years. 
 
There will be some more appointments to consider, especially for park board, before 
the end of September. 
 

Council Questions, Inquiries, Requests and Comments    
   

 August Meetings: Business for the city council ebbs and flows in an 
unpredictable course. However, all things being equal, August should prove 
to present lighter agendas. I will be out of town for the meeting on the 10th, 
and my absence will likely delay some items from otherwise making it to the 
meeting on the 24th.   

 Family Farm & Home: The store manager is making great strides to conform 
to the outdoor storage standards, as well as the landscaping and lighting 
provisions. I expect that an expanded dumpster enclosure will be part of the 
solution. The thirty day period for conformance will expire on July 26th, a day 
before our next meeting. 

 Cemetery Fence: The fence at the corner of Morrish and Fortino sustained 
some damage. Michigan Fence Company apparently has some employees 
that live in town that saw this. They volunteered to fix this at no expense to 
us. Obviously, we didn’t stand in their way of offering superior customer 
service! 

 Gaines Township Firework Ordinance: The ordinance on file for Gaines is 
very similar to the city’s. They prohibit consumer fireworks during the same 
days and times as the city. 
 

 

City Council Packet 11 July 13, 2015



 
City of Swartz Creek 

RESOLUTIONS  
Regular Council Meeting, Monday, July 13, 2015, 7:00 P.M. 

 
Resolution No. 150713-4A  MINUTES – June 22, 2015 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Minutes of the Regular Council 
Meeting held Monday, June 22, 2015, to be circulated and placed on file. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For:_______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________  

 
Resolution No. 150713-5A AGENDA APPROVAL 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as presented / printed / 
amended for the Regular Council Meeting of July 13, 2015, to be circulated and placed 
on file. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 150713-6A CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of July 13, 
2015, to be circulated and placed on file. 

  
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150713-8A ORIENTEERING PROJECT DONATION ACCEPTANCE 
 

 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek accept the donation of Ethan Webb’s Eagle Scout 
Orienteering Course, including instructional plaque and installation, said course to be 
placed in Elms Park as outlined in the proposal included in the July 13, 2015 city 
council packet.   

 

City Council Packet 12 July 13, 2015



Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 

Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150713-8C LIFT STATION UPGRADES 
  

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek owns, operates, and maintains a sewer lift 
station on Cappy Lane, and  
 
WHEREAS, this asset has been noted to require certain repairs and upgrades to its 
pumps, primary housing, and electrical components, and  
 
WHEREAS, the owner of the transmission line, Genesee County, will not permit the 
Cappy Lane station discharge to be connected to an alternate sewer interceptor, and 
 
WHEREAS, the engineer finds that the appropriate upgrades for the existing set up 
shall consist of new dry submersible pumps, with all controls and panels to be located 
above ground, and 
 
WHEREAS, the total cost for installation of the improvements is estimated to be 
$195,500, with an additional $15,042 for design and bidding services, totaling 
$210,542, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek approves the 
construction engineering proposal by ROWE Professional Services Company, dated 
July 8, 2015, for an amount not to exceed $15,042 for design and bidding services 
related to the Cappy Lane lift station. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council directs the Mayor to execute said 
proposal on behalf of the city and for the city finance director to appropriate such 
design costs to Fund 591-537.000-930.000 (Sewer Lift Stations).  

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150713-8D RENTAL INSPECTION ORDINANCE 
 

 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Act 167 of 1917, the Housing Law of Michigan, as amended, 
enables municipal inspections of rental properties, and   
 

City Council Packet 13 July 13, 2015



WHEREAS, the Swartz Creek City Council recognizes a need and subsequent public 
benefit to regularly inspecting rental housing for compliance with building and property 
maintenance codes, and 
 
WHEREAS, a program including registration, inspection, and follow up has been 
created, along with applicable fees and forms, to enable a comprehensive rental 
inspection program in the city, and    
 
WHEREAS, the City Council, finding that a compliance-based interval of inspection is 
in the best interest of the public, renters, and landlords within the city, 
 
 
THEREFORE, I MOVE the City of Swartz Creek ordains: 
 

CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
ORDINANCE NO. 421 

 
An ordinance to amend Chapter 4 of the Code of Ordinances to add thereto a new Article IV 
for inspections of rental properties. 
 
THE CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK ORDAINS: 
 
Section 1. Amendment of Chapter 4 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Swartz 

Creek. 
 
 Chapter 4 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Swartz Creek is hereby amended 
to add thereto a new Article IV entitled “Rental Property Inspections” to read as follows: 
 
 ARTICLE IV.  RENTAL PROPERTY INSPECTIONS 
 
Sec. 4-31. Purpose of standards. 
 
 The city recognizes a compelling interest in establishing standards for the 
maintenance of sanitary and safe residential rental structures in the city as an important 
factor for the general health, safety and welfare of all of its citizens. This article is designed to 
promote the continued maintenance of quality and safe rental properties and to enhance and 
maintain property values. 

 
 This article supplements and augments the existing International Property 
Maintenance Code in protecting and promoting the health, safety and welfare of the citizens 
of the City of Swartz Creek by requiring the registration of all rental dwelling units in the city. 
This registration, combined with regular systematic inspections, will help prevent 
overcrowding, the incidence of communicable diseases, and will aid in the enforcement of the 
International Property Maintenance Code, which sets minimum allowable standards for 
adequate maintenance of habitable dwellings. This article is not intended nor shall it be used 
for the purpose of including the city in civil disputes between rental owners and tenants 
involving, but not limited to, non-payment of rent, evictions and/or personal disputes. 
 
Sec. 4-32. Definitions. 
 

City Council Packet 14 July 13, 2015



 “Dwelling unit” means a building, or portion thereof, designed for occupancy for living 
purposes and having cooking facilities and sanitary facilities, including single family 
residences. 
 
 “Landlord” means any person who owns or controls a dwelling, Dwelling Unit, or 
Rental Unit and rents such unit, either personally or through a designated agent, to any 
person. 
 
 “Owner” means the legal title holder of a Rental Unit or the Premises within which the 
Rental Unit is situated. 
 
 “Rental unit” means any Dwelling Unit or a unit containing sleeping quarters, including 
but not limited to hotels, motels, bed and breakfast establishments, boarding houses, 
sleeping rooms, residential, commercial or industrial property, including structures which are 
leased or rented by the Owner or other Person in control of such units, to any tenant, whether 
by day, week, month, year or any other term, except for jails, hospitals, nursing homes, 
convalescent homes, foster homes or temporary group shelters provided by legal nonprofit 
agencies which are inspected, certified and/or licensed by the state. 
 
Sec. 4-33. Registration. 
 
 An Owner or Landlord shall register their Rental Unit at least once every three years, 
in accordance with the applicable inspection cycle, as follows: 
  

(1)   All existing Rental Units shall be registered within ninety (90) days of the effective 
date of this ordinance. 

 
(2)   All newly constructed Rental Units shall be registered prior to any use or 

occupancy as a rental dwelling unit. 
 
(3)   A new Owner or Landlord shall register a Rental Unit, which is sold, transferred or 

conveyed, within thirty (30) days of the date of the closing of such sale, transfer 
or conveyance.  

 
(4)   All existing non-rental dwelling units, which are converted to Rental Units, shall be 

registered prior to the date on which the property is first occupied for rental 
purposes. 

 
Sec. 4-34. Applications.   
 
 Applications for registration shall be made in such form and in accordance with such 
instructions as may be provided by the building inspector designated by the city manager and 
shall include at least the following information: 
 

(1) The name, address and telephone number of the Owner and/or Landlord (no post 
office box shall be accepted). 

 

City Council Packet 15 July 13, 2015



(2) The name, address and telephone number of the Owner's representative, if the 
rental property owner has opted to appoint a representative. This representative 
must be located within 40 miles of the premises.  

 
(3) Upon registration, the Owner shall be responsible for notifying the building 

inspector of any change of address of either the Owner or Owner's 
representative. 

 
 Included with the registration application shall be an agreement, signed by the Owner, 
permitting inspections of his/her rental properties by officials or agents of the city and 
affirming that all tenants of the subject properties have been informed of the regulations 
contained in this article and of inspections of the rental properties, including common areas, 
by authorized City officials.  All leases executed after the effective date of this article shall 
contain a provision requiring the tenant(s) to consent to such inspection upon notice as 
provided in this article.  
 
 An authorized City official may, with written notice, require additional information of 
any or all registrants in order to reasonably further the purposes of this Article.  
 
  At the time of registration of the Rental Unit, there will be a prescribed fee for 
registration and the initial inspection, as adopted by resolution. Any unpaid registration fees 
shall become a lien on the property immediately and collected as an assessment pursuant to 
city ordinance. 
 
Sec. 4-35. Inspections. 
 
 The building official shall cause a periodic inspection to be made of every Rental Unit 
at least once every three years, with more frequent inspections for Rental Units that are 
found to have deficiencies, said inspection frequency to be in accordance with the procedural 
rules adopted by the city council. Such inspection shall include a thorough examination of all 
parts of such Rental Unit and the premises connected therewith.  
 
 The Owner shall be notified of the date and time of a rental inspection via first class 
mail at least 30 days prior to the inspection date. Owners shall be required to provide all 
notices of inspection to the tenant(s) as required by law.  
 
 Any Rental Unit, even though not previously scheduled for inspection, may be 
inspected without prior notice to the Owner and/or tenant if an authorized city official has 
probable cause to believe that there exists on the property any condition which makes it or 
any portion thereof substandard or unsafe, or there is evidence that a violation of a code may 
exist. 
  
 If access to a structure, premises or area for the purpose of inspection authorized by 
this section is refused, an authorized city official, upon showing that probable cause exists for 
the inspection and for the issuance of an order directing compliance with the inspection 
requirements of this article with respect to such rental dwelling or rental unit, may petition and 
obtain such order from a court which has jurisdiction. 
  

City Council Packet 16 July 13, 2015



 Except for probable cause inspections, a Rental Unit may only be inspected during 
reasonable hours upon presentation of proper identification by an authorized city official. 
  
Sec. 4-36. Standards. 
 
 The standards used to determine Rental Unit and Dwelling Unit compliance with city 
codes and ordinances shall be the International Property Maintenance Code, as adopted and 
amended by the city council. 
 
 The building official is hereby empowered to make such rules and regulations as shall 
be necessary for the enforcement of this article, subject, however, to the approval of the city 
council. When the rules and regulations made under this article have been adopted and 
promulgated by the building official and approved by the city council, they shall be deemed to 
be as complete and binding a part of the article as if such rules were specifically set forth in 
this article. The violation of any of such regulations so adopted shall be deemed a violation of 
this article. Copies of such rules and regulations shall be placed on file in the office of the city 
clerk for inspection by interested parties at any reasonable time. 
 
Sec. 4-37. Noncompliance with code. 
 
 Violations not imminently dangerous. Upon inspection by an authorized city official, if a 
violation of a code is discovered, but the violation is deemed by the official not to be 
immediately dangerous to health, welfare or safety, a violation notice shall be issued to the 
owner. The owner shall be advised of the time period to correct the violation. 
  
 Violations that threaten life, limb or property.  If upon inspection of a rental property the 
authorized city official determines that a violation is of such serious nature so as to 
immediately threaten the health, safety or welfare of the public or the occupants thereof, the 
official shall demand that the violation(s) be corrected immediately and/or the rental property 
be vacated immediately. 
  
Sec. 4-38. Notices. 
 
 The building inspector shall issue a written report in accordance with Section 107 of 
the International Property Maintenance Code, noting any violations of this article or any other 
provision of the city's ordinances and shall provide a copy of the report to the owner or 
owner's representative. 
 
  The building inspector shall direct the owner or owner's representative to correct 
violations within the time set forth in the report. A reasonable time for correcting violations 
shall be determined by the building inspector in light of the nature of the violations and all 
relevant circumstances, which shall not exceed sixty (60) days, unless correction of the 
violation within a 60-day period is impossible due to seasonal considerations. 
 
  Upon request of the person responsible for correcting violations, the building inspector 
may extend the time for correcting violations, but not to exceed an additional thirty (30) days. 
 
 Re-inspections of a rental property shall occur on the date specified on the violation 
notice, or sooner if requested by the owner and city scheduling permits such inspection. It 

City Council Packet 17 July 13, 2015



shall be the owner's responsibility to coordinate the access to all areas of their rental 
properties. A fee as established by resolution of the City Council shall be charged for each re-
inspection after the first re-inspection.  
 
Sec. 4-39. Violations. 
 
 A violation of any provision of this ordinance shall be punished as a municipal civil 
infraction, subject to fines and costs identified in Section 1-21 of Article II of the City of Swartz 
Creek Code of Ordinances. 
 
 Any structure not in compliance with this article is deemed a nuisance per se. 
 
 The building inspector, building official, code enforcement officer and any other person 
designated by the city manager is hereby designated as the authorized individual to issue 
municipal civil infraction citations or pursue any other lawful remedy for violations of this 
Article. 
 
 In addition to any penalties imposed by law, upon a finding of responsibility by the 
court for a violation of this Article, the City may immediately revoke the registration and order 
the immediate eviction of all persons and property upon the premises until a certificate of 
compliance is issued by the city. 
 
Sec. 4-40. Fees. 
 
 The City shall, by resolution, establish the fees for registration and inspections of 
Rental Units and the City Clerk shall make the fee schedule available to the public during 
regular office hours. Any unpaid inspection fees shall become a lien on the property and 
collected as delinquent property taxes as allowed by law. 
 
Sec. 4-41. Appeals. 
 
 Any person aggrieved by an order or decision of any official charged with the 
enforcement of this Article may appeal that order or decision to the city council provided that 
appeal is taken no later than twenty (20) days from the date of the order or decision being 
appealed. The appellant shall file with the official from whose decision such appeal is taken 
and with the city clerk, a notice of appeal specifying the ground therefor. The official from 
whom the appeal is taken shall forthwith transmit to the city clerk a summary report of all 
previous action taken. The city council may at its discretion call upon the official from whom 
the appeal is taken, to explain his/her action. The final disposition of such appeal shall be in 
the form of a resolution either reversing, modifying or affirming, wholly or partly, the decision 
or the determination appealed from. To this end, the city council shall have all the powers of 
the official from whom the appeal is taken. 
 
Sec. 4-42. Hearings. 
 
 The city council acting as the board of appeals shall fix a reasonable time for the 
hearing of the appeal and give due notice thereof to interested parties and decide the same 
within a reasonable time. 
 

City Council Packet 18 July 13, 2015



Sec. 4-43. Cost. 
 
 The cost of the demolition, making the building safe, or of maintaining the exterior of 
the building or structure or grounds adjoining the building or structure, incurred by the city to 
bring the property into compliance with this article shall be reimbursed to the city by the 
owner or party in interest in whose name the property appears. 
 
Sec. 4-44. Lien. 
 
 The owner or party in interest in whose name the property appears upon the last local 
tax assessment records shall be notified by the assessor of the amount of the costs of the 
demolition, making the building safe, or of maintaining the exterior of the building, structure or 
grounds adjoining the building or structure by first class mail at the address shown on the 
records. If the owner or party in interest fails to pay the costs within 30 days after mailing by 
the assessor of the notice of the amount of the cost to the city, the city shall have a lien for 
the cost incurred to bring the property into conformance with this article. The lien for the cost 
shall be collected and treated in the same manner as provided for property tax liens under 
the general property tax act, Act No. 206 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1893 (MCL 211.1 
et seq.), as amended. 
 
Sec. 4-45. Separate legal action; judgment. 
 
 In addition to other remedies under this article, the city may bring an action against the 
owner of the building or structure for the full cost of the demolition, of making the building 
safe, or of maintaining the exterior of the building or structure or grounds adjoining the 
building or structure. The city shall have a lien on the property for the amount of a judgment 
obtained pursuant to this section. The lien provided for in this section shall not take effect 
until notice of the lien is filed or recorded as provided by law. 
 
Section 2. Effective Date. 
 
 This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days following publication. 
 
 
At a regular meeting of the City Council of Swartz Creek held on the 13th day of July, 2015, 
________________ moved for adoption of the foregoing ordinance and ________________ 
supported the motion. 
 
Voting for: 
 
Voting against: 
 
The Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
      David Krueger 
      Mayor 
 

City Council Packet 19 July 13, 2015



 
      ___________________________________ 
      Juanita Aguilar 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 CERTIFICATION 
 
The foregoing is a true copy of Ordinance No. 421 which was enacted by the Swartz Creek 
City Council at a regular meeting held on the 13th day of July, 2015. 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Juanita Aguilar 
      City Clerk  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following forms, as included in the July 13, 
2015 city council packet, shall be hereby incorporated into the rental inspection 
program of the City of Swartz Creek, with future fees subject to resolution by the city 
council: 
 
Rental Registration & Inspection Procedural Rules & Policies 
Occupant Information Form.  
Rental Registration Form 
Rental Inspection Certificate of Compliance 
Rental Inspection Report 
Rental Registration Letter 
Flowchart of Rental Registration Process 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150713-8E STORM WATER AGREEMENT  
 

 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the County of Genesee and City of Swartz Creek are subject to the 
requirements of the Phase II Storm Water Regulations published by the United 
Stations Environmental Protection Agency in the Federal Register on December 8, 
1999; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County established the Genesee County Storm Water Management 
System to provide storm water management services to county municipalities, 
including Swartz Creek, in accordance with the provisions of Public Act 342 of 1939 to 
enable the county and municipalities to comply with the requirements of Phase II 
regulations; and 
 

City Council Packet 20 July 13, 2015



WHEREAS, the Genesee County Drain Commission is the agency designated to 
establish, manage, and operate the System; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County and municipalities, including Swartz Creek, entered into the 
Genesee County Phase II Regulations Storm Water Management System Contract, 
dated May 1, 2011 to enable the following activities: 
 

Public education and outreach on storm water impacts, 
Public participation/involvement, 
Illicit discharge detection and elimination 
Construction site storm water runoff control, 
Post-construction storm water runoff control, 
Pollution prevention/good housekeeping for municipal operations; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County and Municipalities desire to proceed with the foregoing 
implementation activities and related sub-committee activities required by the Phase II 
Regulations and to provide for a method for allocating costs of such activities, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek hereby approves the 
Third Amendment to Genesee County Phase II Regulations Storm Water Management 
System Contract to be dated as of October 1, 2015, among the County of Genesee, 
acting through its Drain Commissioner, as County Agency, and the Municipalities (the 
“Amendment”), which Amendment provides, among other things, for the provision by 
the Genesee County Storm Water Management System of services for implementation 
activities required by the Phase II Regulations, the allocation of the costs of such 
activities among the County and the Municipalities, and the payment by the County and 
the Municipalities of their respective share of the cost of the services as set forth in the 
Amendment. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek and Clerk are authorized and 
directed to execute and deliver the Amendment for and on behalf of the City of Swartz 
Creek. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED a copy of the Amendment presented on this date and 
herein approved and authorized to be executed and delivered shall be attached to the 
minutes of this meeting and made a part thereof and shall be placed on file with the 
Clerk and made available for examination by any interested person during normal 
business hours. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all resolutions and parts of resolutions, insofar as 
they may be in conflict herewith, are hereby rescinded. 
 
  
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150713–8F BIKES ON THE BRICKS 
 

City Council Packet 21 July 13, 2015



Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council hereby authorize Bikes on the Bricks to make 
application to the Genesee County Road Commission on behalf of the City of Swartz 
Creek in the county of Genesee, Michigan for the permitting of a motorcycle 
motorcade on September 12, 2015, which is planned to make use of right of ways of 
Seymour and Miller Roads approaching and within the City of Swartz Creek.  The 
council further indemnifies and agrees to save harmless all persons employed by or 
serving the permitting agency from claims of every kind arising out of operations 
authorized by such permit as may be issued.  
  
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 150713–8G DEDICATION OF CITY HALL 
 

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, Paul Daniel Bueche, born March 11, 1956, began his career in law 
enforcement with Swartz Creek in 1977; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Bueche was subsequently promoted to the rank of Sergeant in 1985, 
to Chief of Police in 1995, and to City Manager in 2002; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Bueche served on numerous boards including the 911 Board, 
Planning Commission, Chief of Police Association, and Downtown Development 
Authority; and 
 
WHEREAS, Paul’s positive contributions and impact in the community as a city 
employee, businessman, and family man are too numerous to account; and 
 
WHEREAS, Paul passed away on May 15, 2014, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek hereby approves 
the official naming of city hall as the “PAUL D. BUECHE MUNICIPAL BUILDING” and 
directs the city manager to prepare new signage and a dedication ceremony for 
August 24, 2015. 
  
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 150713-8H POLICE VEHICLE AUCTION 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek, finding the 2009 Dodge Charger police cruiser to be 
beyond its useful life for the execution of safe and efficient police activities, hereby 

City Council Packet 22 July 13, 2015



direct and authorize the Chief of Police to auction this vehicle and related 
appurtenances (listed below) by means of the Bidcorp.com service. 
 

1. 2009 Dodge Charger, VIN #2B3KA43V59H519401, 95,000 miles 
2. Whelen “Edge” series light bar model #LL288000 Serial #5347 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 150713–8I COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council concur with the Mayor and City Council 
appointment as follows: 

 
 MAYOR RE-APPOINTMENT:    ROBERT BROWN 

  Board of Review 
Three-Year Term Expiring June 30, 2018 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

City Council Packet 23 July 13, 2015



 CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
SWARTZ CREEK, MICHIGAN 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
DATE 6/22/2015 

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Krueger in the Swartz Creek City 
Council Chambers, 8083 Civic Drive. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Councilmembers Present:  Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, 

Shumaker. 
 
Councilmembers Absent:   None. 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Adam Zettel, City Clerk Juanita Aguilar, 

DPS Director Tom Svrcek, Steve Warren- OHM Advisor. 
     
Others Present: Bob Plumb, Sharon Shumaker, Evelyn Woodward 

Deneen, Dick Deneen, Robert Moak, Carole Gould, 
Dennis Gould, Sandra Moak, Rick Ballreich, Sharon 
Ballreich, Joe Kohler, Joyce Kohler, Norman Butts, Vicki 
Butts, Jennie Pyles, Marilyn Marsh, Steve Shumaker, 
Patti Elias, Pat Dunnigan, Don Gavriloff, Rosie Gavriloff, 
Allen Brown, Linda Brown, John Mullen, Patricia Mullen,  
Edwin Moon, Ron Schultz, Jim Florence, R.M. Teunion, 
Michael McGaffigan, Joe Perreault. 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 Resolution No. 150622-01       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Porath 
  Second by Councilmember Shumaker 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council hereby approve the Minutes of the Regular 
Council Meeting held Monday, June 8, 2015 to be circulated and placed on file. 

 
YES: Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams. 

 NO:   None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution No. 150622-02       (Carried) 

 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Abrams  

  Second by Councilmember Shumaker 
 

City Council Packet 24 July 13, 2015



I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as presented, for the 
Regular Council Meeting of June 22, 2015, to be circulated and placed on file. 

 
YES:  Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert. 

  NO:   None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
City Manager’s Report 
 
  Resolution No. 150622-03       (Carried) 
 

 Motion by Councilmember Shumaker 
Second by Councilmember Gilbert 

 
 I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of June 
22, 2015, to be circulated and placed on file. 

  
YES: Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC 
 
Sharon Ballreich, resides at 4297 Maya Ln., spoke in regards to the Springbrook East 
Association request on the agenda. 
 
COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
FOIA Policies and Forms        
 
         Resolution No. 150622-04        (Carried) 
  

Motion by Councilmember Hicks 
Second by Mayor Pro Tem Abrams 

 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Legislature recently adopted amendments to the 
Michigan Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”), Public Act 422 of 1976, especially as 
to fees that the City can assess for responding to FOIA requests, and  
 
WHEREAS, the city adopts this resolution so that the fees it assesses in responding 
to FOIA requests are consistent with these changes in state law, and  
 
WHEREAS, the city also desires to have a comprehensive and transparent FOIA 
policy, and 
 
WHEREAS, the city maintains presence on the internet and is therefore compelled 
to maintain summary of its FOIA policies on its webpage,  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council hereby resolves to adopt 
the FOIA Procedures and Guidelines, with related summary, and fee schedule 
attached hereto, as may be amended from time to time.  

City Council Packet 25 July 13, 2015



    
   YES: Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger. 

NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

Bench Donation Acceptance 
                          
Resolution No. 150622-05      (Carried) 
 

  Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
  Second by Councilmember Hicks 
 

I Move the City of Swartz Creek accept the donation of a park bench from Beta 
Sigma Phi, including the inscription “BONNIE RODGERS – JULY 15, 2014 – BETA 
SIGMA PHI SORORITY”, said bench to be placed in Elms Park as directed by Mr. 
Svrcek and as permitted by the Park Board.   
 

   YES: Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
Paving Project Change Order - Bristol 

 
Resolution No. 150622-06       (Carried) 
  

  Motion by Councilmember Pinkston 
  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Abrams 

 
WHEREAS, the service cuts that service the GM facility and serve as the 
connecting traffic routes between Miller and Bristol Road are rapidly deteriorating; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the ownership of these “cuts” was previously questioned, with evidence 
supporting ownership by General Motors; and 
 
WHEREAS, this ownership discrepancy resulted in the exclusion of these areas 
from the most recent federal aid road project in the vicinity, being the Bristol Road 
resurfacing; and 
 
WHEREAS, past practice and updated county parcel maps strongly support the 
case that these cuts are within the right-of-way of the city and are the city’s 
responsibility to own, operate, and maintain; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city is in the process of resurfacing Miller Road and is able to 
extend very competitive unit prices to this adjacent area, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek approve the 
additional paving scope as outlined in the engineers project description, including 
placement of 138.35 tons of hot mix asphalt (HMA) to complete the connection 
between the Miller Road surface area and the Bristol Road project limit, estimated 
to cost $10,827.96, and further direct staff to procure such services under the costs 

City Council Packet 26 July 13, 2015



established by the existing contract and appropriate such expenses as budgeted in 
fiscal year 2016. 
 
Discussion Ensued. 
 

   YES: Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
  

Paving Project Change Order – Miller 
 

Resolution No. 150622-07       (Carried)
   
  Motion by Councilmember Porath 
  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Abrams 

 
WHEREAS, the city widened Miller Road within the last decade to add a right turn 
only lane that extended from Elms Road to the west Kroger entrance along the 
north side of Miller Road (west bound traffic); and 
 
WHEREAS, a section of this improvement remains in superior condition to the 
surrounding pavement on Miller Road and was therefore excluded from participation 
within the MDOT project to resurface Miller Road; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city does not anticipate resurfacing Miller Road for the foreseeable 
future; and 
 
WHEREAS, economies of scale and safety concerns, especially related to traffic 
control and mobilization make the present time opportune to resurface this 
additional lane; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city is in the process of resurfacing Miller Road and is able to 
extend very competitive unit prices to this project area, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek approve the 
additional paving scope as outlined in the engineers project description, including 
placement of 56 tons of hot mix asphalt (HMA) to complete the connection between 
the work as mapped within the city council packet, said work estimated to cost 
$4,800.15, and further direct staff to procure such services under the costs 
established by the existing contract and appropriate such expenses as budgeted in 
fiscal year 2016. 
 
Discussion Ensued. 
 

   YES: Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
 

Fireworks Ordinance 
 

City Council Packet 27 July 13, 2015



Resolution No. 150622-08       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Abrams 
  Second by Councilmember Hicks 

 
WHEREAS, the Public Act 256 of 2011, the Michigan Fireworks Safety Act, set 
state-wide restrictions and allowances for the use of fireworks within the state of 
Michigan, and   
 
WHEREAS, this act limits control of local ordinances under specific circumstances, 
making the existing ordinance difficult to enforce, and 
 
WHEREAS, as a city with fewer than 50,000 residents in a county with fewer than 
750,000 residents, Swartz Creek retains the right to regulate consumer and display 
fireworks as it relates to the time, place, and manner of such use, and    
 
WHEREAS, the City Council, finding that these changes need to be in place 
immediately in order to provide for the protection of the public welfare during the 4th 
of July holiday, declares Ordinance 420 to be an emergency ordinance, 
 
 
THEREFORE, I MOVE the City of Swartz Creek ordains: 

 
 ORDINANCE NO. 420 
 
 An ordinance to bring the City into conformity with state law regarding the regulation 
of fireworks; to repeal conflicting ordinances on the same subject matter; and to provide 
penalties for violations thereof. 
        
THE CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK ORDAINS: 
 
Section 1. Adoption of Fireworks Ordinance. 
 
 The City Council hereby adopts an ordinance regulating fireworks to read as 
follows: 
 
 Sec. 1. Definitions. 
 
 For purposes of this Ordinance, the following definitions shall apply: 
 
 1. Articles pyrotechnic:  pyrotechnic devices for professional use that are 

similar to consumer fireworks in the chemical composition and construction 
but not intended for consumer use, that meet the weight limits for consumer 
fireworks but are not labeled as such, and that are classified as UN0431 or 
UN0432 under 49 CFR 172.101. 

 
 2. APA:  American Pyrotechnics Association. 
 

City Council Packet 28 July 13, 2015



 3. Consumer fireworks:  fireworks devices that are designed to produce 
visible effects by combustion, that are required to comply with the 
construction, chemical composition and labeling regulations promulgated by 
the United States consumer product safety commission under 16 CFR parts 
1500 and 1507, and that are listed in APA standard 87-1, 3.1.2, 3.1.3 or 3.5   
Consumer fireworks does not include low-impact fireworks.  

 
 4. Department:  Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs (LARA), 

State of Michigan. 
 
 5. Display fireworks:   large fireworks devices that are explosive 

materials intended for use in fireworks displays and designed to produce 
visible or audible effect by combustion, deflagration, or detonation as 
provided in 27 CFR 555.11, 49 CFR 162 and APA standard 87-1, 4.1. 

 
 6. Firework or fireworks:  any composition or device, except for a starting 

pistol, a flare gun or a flare, designed for the purpose of producing a visible 
or audible effect by combustion, deflagration, or detonation.  Fireworks 
consist of consumer fireworks, low-impact fireworks, articles pyrotechnic, 
display fireworks and special effects. 

 
 7. Low Impact Fireworks: ground and handheld sparkling devices at that 

phrase is defined under APA standard 87-1, 3.1, 3.1.1.1 to 3.1.1.8 and 3.5. 
 
 8. Minor:  individual who is less than 18 years old. 
 
 9. National holiday:   A national holiday is defined in 5 USC 6103 and 

includes:  New Year’s Day (January ); Martin Luther King Jr. Day (third 
Monday in January); Washington’s Birthday (third Monday in February); 
Memorial Day (last Monday in May); Independence Day (July 4); Labor Day 
(first Monday in September); Columbus Day (second Monday in October); 
Veterans Day (November 11); Thanksgiving Day (fourth Thursday in 
November); Christmas Day (December 25).  

 
 10. NFPA:  National Fire Protection Association. 
 
 11. Novelties:  as defined under APA standard 87-1, 3.2, 3.2.1, 3.2.2, 

3.2.3, 3.2.4 and 3.2.5.and all of the following: 
 
 (a) Toy plastic or paper caps for toy pistols in sheets, strips, rolls or 

individual caps containing not more than .25 of a grain of explosive 
content per cap, in packages labeled to indicate the maximum 
explosive content per cup. 

   
 (b) Toy pistols, toy cannons, toy canes, toy trick noisemakers, and 

toy guns in which toy caps as described in the above paragraph are 
used, that are constructed so that the hand cannot come in contact 
with the cap when in place for the explosion, and that are not 
designed to break apart or be separated so as to form a missile by the 

City Council Packet 29 July 13, 2015



explosion. 
   
 (c) Flitter sparklers in paper tubes not exceeding 1/8 inch in 

diameter. 
  
 12. Person: individual, agent, association, charitable organization, 

company, limited liability company, corporation, labor organization, legal 
representative, partnership, unincorporated organization, or any other legal 
or commercial entity.  

 
 13. Special effects:  a combination of chemical elements or chemical 

compounds capable of burning independently of the oxygen of the 
atmosphere and designed and intended to produce an audible, visual, 
mechanical, or thermal effect as in integral part of a motion picture, radio, 
television, theatrical or opera production or live entertainment. 

 
 Sec. 2. Novelties. 
 

This Ordinance does not apply to and does not regulate the use of Novelties in the 
City.  
 
 Sec.3.  Consumer Fireworks. 
 
 (A) Consumer fireworks may be used in the City on the day proceeding, 

the day of and the day after a national holiday between the hours of 8:00 
a.m. and 1:00 a.m.  

 
 (B) At any time other than the day preceding, the day of and/or the day 

after a national holiday consumer fireworks shall be prohibited. 
 
 (C) A person shall not ignite, discharge or use consumer fireworks on 

public property, school property, church property or the property of another 
person, without that person or organization’s express permission to use the 
consumer fireworks on those premises.    

 
 (D) A person shall not use consumer fireworks or low impact fireworks 

while under the influence of alcoholic liquor, a controlled substance or a 
combination of alcoholic liquor and a controlled substance.  

 
 (E) Consumer fireworks shall only be used in accordance with all 

applicable local, state and federal laws. 
 
 Sec. 4. Pyrotechnic and Display Fireworks. 
 
 (A) The City may permit articles pyrotechnic, display fireworks and special 

effect fireworks pursuant to the provisions of MCL 28.451, et seq and this 
Ordinance. 

 
 (B) Any person wishing to conduct an articles pyrotechnic, display 

City Council Packet 30 July 13, 2015



fireworks or special effects display shall, at least 45 days prior to any display, 
submit an application on a form furnished by the City, pay the required fee 
and shall secure permission from the City prior to any such fireworks display.  

 
 (C) The site plan of the area where the articles pyrotechnic, display 

fireworks or special effects display is to be conducted shall be submitted with 
the application.  The site plan shall set forth all structures in the area and 
within the discharge site fallout area.  The site plan shall furthermore set forth 
the distance separating any fireworks and any spectator viewing areas.  All 
site plans shall be forwarded to the Fire Chief and/or his designated alternate 
for approval, including any recommended conditions, prior to coming before 
the City Council for its approval.  

 
 (D) A copy of any required state or federal permit for the fireworks display 

shall be submitted with the application. 
 
 (E) Proof of insurance conforming the requirements of this Ordinance and 

PA 256 of 211 shall be submitted with the application. 
 
 (F) The application shall include information as to the competency and 

qualifications of the fireworks display operators, as required by NFPA 1123. 
 
 (F) The City shall approve an application for an articles pyrotechnic, 

display fireworks or special effects display if it finds that all of the following 
standards are satisfied: 

 
1) The application and accompanying documentation is complete and 

conforms to the requirements of this Ordinance. 
 

2) The operator of the fireworks display is competent and qualified to 
conduct the fireworks display, per NFPA 1123. 

 
3) The Fire Chief or his/her designated alternate has approved the 

application and site plan.  
 

4) The fireworks display will not have an adverse effect upon public 
safety. 

 
5) The time, duration, location of the fireworks or special effects 

display will not, due to noise and other factors, unreasonably 
disturb the peace of persons residing within the vicinity.  

6) The City, in approving an application hereunder, shall have the 
authority to impose such conditions as it determines in its sole 
reasonable discretion are necessary to assure that the fireworks 
display will satisfy the above standards. 

 
 (G) Requirements and Restrictions. 
 
1. The person conducting the fireworks display shall follow NFPA 1123 for fireworks 

City Council Packet 31 July 13, 2015



display and/or the City requirements set forth herein, whichever are more restrictive. 
 

2. A minimum safe area of 250 feet radius, plus an additional 70 feet radius for each 
inch by which the fireworks shell exceeds 3 inches in diameter shall be required.   The City 
shall have the authority to grant a variance from this requirement where it determines in its 
sole reasonable discretion that, given 1) the nature of the subject site, 2) the nature of the 
surrounding area and/or 3) the nature of the proposed fireworks display, that a variance 
will not have a material adverse impact on public safety.  In no event, however, shall the 
applicant fail to comply with the minimum requirements of NFPA 1123. 

 
3. The applicant shall maintain personal injury liability insurance/property damage 
liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 for each event.   The City shall be named as 
an additional insured on the insurance policy. 

 
4. The City shall not issue a permit to a nonresident person until the person has 
appointed in writing a member of the state bar or a resident agent to be the person’s legal 
representative upon whom all process in an action or proceeding against the person may 
be served.  

 
5. The applicant shall be responsible for all shells being fired.  In the event one or 
more of the shells does not explode, the applicant shall secure the area until the 
unexploded shell(s) is found and properly disposed of. 

 
6. The consumption of alcohol immediately prior to and during the fireworks display by 
any person involved in conducting the display is prohibited. 

 
7. A fireworks display conducted hereunder shall conform with all specifications set 
forth in the approved application and site plan, as well as with any conditions imposed by 
the City in granting such approval. 

 
8. The applicant shall cause the site of the fireworks display to be cleaned up within 24 
hours after the fireworks display has ended.  

 
9. A permit is not transferable and shall not be granted to a minor. 
  

Sec. 5. Violations; penalties. 
 
 Any person that violates any provision of this Ordinance shall be deemed 
responsible for a municipal civil infraction and fined in accordance with the following 
schedule:  

Minimum  Maximum 
Fine   Fine 

1st offense within 3 year period    $ 75.00    $500.00 
2nd offense within 3 year period* $ 150.00     $500.00 
3rd offense within 3 year period* $ 325.00       $500.00 
4th offense within 3 year period* $ 500.00       $500.00 

 
 Additionally, the violator shall pay costs which may include all expenses, direct and 
indirect, which the City incurs in enforcing this Ordinance. 

City Council Packet 32 July 13, 2015



 
 In addition, the City shall have the right to proceed in any court of competent 
jurisdiction for the purpose of obtaining an injunction, restraining order or other appropriate 
remedy to compel compliance with this Ordinance.   Each day that a violation of this 
Ordinance continues to exist shall constitute a separate violation of this Ordinance.   
 
Section 2. Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances. 
 
 The City Council hereby repeals all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict 
herewith, including Section 10-192. 
 
Section 3. Effective Date. 
 
This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon publication. 
 
At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Swartz Creek held on June 22, 2015, 
adoption of the foregoing ordinance was moved by Mayor Pro Tem Abrams and supported 
by Councilmember Hicks. 
 
Voting for: Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams.  
Voting against: None.  
 
The Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 
 
      ______________________________ 
      David A. Krueger 
      Mayor 
 
 CERTIFICATION 
 
The foregoing is a true copy of Ordinance No. 420, which was enacted by the City Council 
of the City of Swartz Creek at a regular meeting held on June 22, 2015. 
 
 

______________________________ 
Juanita Aguilar, City Clerk 
 

   YES:  Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Abrams requested a recess.  

 
Springbrook East Lot Proceeds 
 

Resolution No. 150622-09      (Carried) 
    

 
Motion by Councilmember Shumaker 

  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Abrams 

City Council Packet 33 July 13, 2015



 
WHEREAS, the city acquired a total of 12 vacant units from street paving special 
assessment projects in Springbrook East in December, 2011, including the following 
units: 

Springbrook East Units  
Parcel Number Number  Property Address Owner 

    58-36-676-039       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-040       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-041       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-042       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-043       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-044       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-051       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-053       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-054       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-055       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-056       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-064       0 RUSSELL DR       City Swartz Creek 

 
WHEREAS, the city determined that a public purpose existed for obtaining the lots, 
being control and guarantee for the collection of the special assessment fees, the 
preservation of property values for the existing homes in the subdivisions and the 
resolve of underground utility and storm-surface water issues; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city previously found that the long term intent was to sell the lots to 
recover assessment costs and other administrative costs and to preserve property 
values; and  
 
WHEREAS, the city resolved on October 14, 2013, to permit the Springbrook East 
Condominium Association to benefit from lot sale proceeds above the city’s costs as 
a means to offset development costs contributed by association members as 
follows: 
 

“Sell the 12 Springbrook East lots to Springbrook East Association for 
$2,535.50 each under a three year non-binding agreement wherein the 
association could buy any number of lots at any time and re-sell them at their 
sole discretion.  At any time, either party could back out of the agreement upon 
written notice after which the City would have no further obligation to the 
Association.” 

 
WHEREAS, the association and the city, due to procedural circumstance, never 
entered in to such an arrangement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city issued a request for proposals to develop these units in 2014, 
had the proposals reviewed by a committee, and resolved to sell the units at market 
value to Woodside Builders for an amount exceeding the recovery of the 
assessment and administrative costs; and 
 

City Council Packet 34 July 13, 2015



WHEREAS, the city invested $2,535.50 into each lot with sale proceeds expected 
to total $105,168.50 for all twelve lots, leaving $74,742.50 unencumbered; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Springbrook East Condominium Association board now requests 
that the lot sale proceeds in excess of the costs input by the city be transferred to 
the association to offset a portion of their special assessment costs. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Swartz Creek City Council approves 
the payment of $74,742.50 or 71.1%, whichever is less, of Springbrook East lot sale 
proceeds to the Springbrook East Condominium Association, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the city shall issue the association a check for 
71.1% of proceeds received to date and shall endeavor to future payments within 
60 days of each sale at the rate of 71.1% of each such sale as outlined in the 
current purchase agreements.  
 
Discussion Ensued. 
 

   YES: Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Gilbert. 
NO: Abrams.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
 Dye Road Lot Sales        (Carried) 
 
  Resolution No. 150622-10 

 
   Motion by Councilmember Hicks 
   Second by Mayor Pro Tem Abrams 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek owns two vacant, unimproved parcels of real 
property on Dye Road, identified as parcel 58-29-551-026, and 58-29-551-028, 
and; 
 
WHEREAS, the city received an unsolicited offer to purchase this property from an 
adjacent landowner, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the city council directed the planning commission to make a 
recommendation concerning this matter, and;  
 
WHEREAS, the commission reviewed the proposal at their meeting on June 2, 
2015 and found the properties to be of marginal public value, and; 
 
WHEREAS, under the city’s land sale policy, the city council finds that a 
professional auction is the optimal sale process to be in the best interest of the 
public for the purposes of expediting the sale of surplus property, 
 
NOW, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek directs the city manager to 
enter into contract with Biddergy LLC as included in the city council packet of June 
22, 2015 for the auction both parcels. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all such bids shall be brought back to the 
city council for consideration, with the city council reserving the right to reject any 
and all bids.  

City Council Packet 35 July 13, 2015



 
   
   YES: Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks. 

NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
Third Street Property 
 
  Resolution No. 150622-11                                 (Carried) 
   

Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
Second by Mayor Pro Tem Abrams 
 

WHEREAS, the Swartz Creek city council made the following findings as it relates 
to the future use of 5017 Third Street, PID 58-01-502-077: 

 
1. The prior use, existing zoning, and future land use designation for this parcel 

are all classified as residential 
2. The parcel still retains two accessory structures of a residential use 
3. The parcel is adjacent to a residential use to the south and a commercial use 

to the north, with residential across the street and commercial behind 
4. Adjacent owners have expressed a written interest to split the property 
5. If split, resulting parcels must be rezoned to reflect the parent parcel of the 

respective buyer 
6. Any split line must transect the property east-west to enable access 
7. Resulting parcel splits must be combined with the respective parent parcels 

upon any sale; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Swartz Creek City Council directed the city manager to negotiate 
the sale, split, and related conditions of such sale with the adjacent landowners on 
Third Street; and, 
 
WHEREAS, a purchase agreement and a pair of sale instruments are now 
presented to the city council for consideration, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Swartz Creek City Council hereby 
approves the sale of 5017 Third Street for $7,500, said sale to involve the split and 
separate deeding to the adjacent land owners as outlined in the purchase 
agreement and quit claim deeds attached. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the council directs staff to make said sale 
instruments available for public inspection and comment for no less than 30 days, in 
accordance with city charter, at which point the sales shall be considered again by 
the city council. 
 

    YES: Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger. 
 NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
County Treasurer’ Agreement, Acquire Tax Reverted Property 
 

City Council Packet 36 July 13, 2015



Resolution No. 150622-12       (Carried) 
 

Motion by Councilmember Pinkston 
Second by Councilmember Hicks 
  

WHEREAS, on June 8, 2015 at a public meeting, the Swartz Creek City Council 
reviewed the staff and planning commission recommendation to acquire specific 
parcels listed as Genesee County Treasurers’ tax reverted property currently under 
foreclosure; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that a public purpose exists for the acquisition of 
the property, located at 5012 Holland Drive, that purpose being the potential blight 
elimination, environmental remediation, and neighborhood enhancement; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that a public purpose exists for the acquisition of 
the properties on Young Drive and Cardigan Drive, that purpose being the 
prevention of blight, potential drainage and other infrastructure improvements, and 
neighborhood enhancement; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the list of all such properties for which there is a public purpose 
includes: 
 

Parcel Number Address Minimum Bid 
58-02-529-017 5012 Holland Drive $34,137.42 
58-03-531-033 Cardigan Drive 1673.62 
58-03-531-034 Cardigan Drive 1673.60 
58-03-531-129 Young Drive 1671.99 
58-03-531-130 Young Drive 1671.91 
58-03-531-136 Young Drive 870.69 
58-03-531-143 Young Drive 1673.64 
58-03-531-144 Young Drive 1673.59 
   
Total  $45,046.46 
 
; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the County Treasurers’ Office requires certain conditions and 
stipulations relative to the acquisition of tax reverted properties by local units of 
government, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I Move the City of Swartz Creek enter into an agreement with 
the Genesee County Treasurers’ Office, and further, direct the Mayor Dave Krueger 
and City Clerk to execute the agreement on behalf of the City, agreement as 
follows: 

 
NOTICE TO GENESEE COUNTY TREASURER DEBORAH L. CHERRY, THE 

FORECLOSING GOVERNMENTAL UNIT, OF ELECTION TO PURCHASE FORECLOSED 
PROPERTY 

 

City Council Packet 37 July 13, 2015



 The City of Swartz Creek hereby notifies Deborah L. Cherry, Genesee County 
Treasurer and Genesee County Foreclosing Governmental Unit, that it intends to purchase 
property described as SEE ATTACHED LISTING, also known as SEE ATTACHED LISTING, 
which property is located in Swartz Creek, Michigan, for a public purpose. The purchase price 
is $45,046.46, which amount is the minimum bid as that term is defined in MCL 211.78m (11). 
  
The public purpose for which the property is being purchased is: 
 
Blight prevention, infrastructure improvements, and neighborhood enhancement thus 
advancing neighborhood stabilization. 
 
 The City of Swartz Creek agrees that this Notice will be filed with the Genesee County 
Register of Deeds and that the City of Swartz Creek  will notify the Foreclosing Governmental 
Unit at least seven days before the event if it ever sells or transfers to a third party all or any 
part of the above described property. Further, the City of Swartz Creek understands and 
agrees that if it should ever sell the purchased property above described for an amount in 
excess of the minimum bid and all costs incurred relating to demolition, renovation, 
improvements, or infrastructure development, the excess amount shall be returned to the 
Genesee County Treasurer for deposit into the delinquent tax property sales proceeds 
account for the year in which the property was purchased by the City of Swartz Creek.   
  
Upon the request of the Foreclosing Governmental Unit the  
City of Swartz Creek shall provide without cost to the Foreclosing Governmental Unit 
information requested regarding any subsequent sale or transfer of the above described 
property. The information shall be provided within seven days of receipt of the request. 
 
This election by the City of Swartz Creek is made subject to any prior right of election vested 
in the State of Michigan. 
 
The City of Swartz Creek understands that neither Genesee County nor Deborah L. Cherry, 
either individually and/or as Genesee County Treasurer and/or as the Foreclosing 
Governmental Unit, makes any warranty of any kind as to the title transferred to the City of 
Swartz Creek and will not indemnify, defend, save nor hold harmless the City of Swartz Creek 
from any or all claims, liabilities, damages, losses, suits, fines, penalties, demands or 
expenses, including costs of suit and attorney fees, incurred by the City of Swartz Creek 
because of or related to its election to purchase the property above described.   
 
The City of Swartz Creek agrees to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless Genesee 
County and Deborah L. Cherry, individually and/or as Genesee County Treasurer and/or as 
Foreclosing Governmental Unit, from any and all claims, liabilities, damages, losses, suits, 
fines, penalties, demands and expenses, including costs of suit and attorney fees, which 
Genesee County and/or Deborah L. Cherry, individually and/or as Genesee County Treasurer 
and/or as Foreclosing Governmental Unit incurred because of or related to the election of the 
City of Swartz Creek to purchase the property above described.        
  
Attached to this notice is a copy of the resolution authorizing the purchase which resolution 
incorporates the indemnification of Genesee County and Deborah L. Cherry. 
 
 
Date:_______________     _____________________ 
       David A. Krueger, Mayor  
 
 
Date:_______________     _____________________ 
       Juanita Aguilar, Clerk 

  

City Council Packet 38 July 13, 2015



BE IF FURTHER RESOLVED, the cost to purchase such properties, being 
$45,046.46 as well as the addition of the current year taxes, shall be appropriated to 
the unencumbered, unreserved General Fund (101) fund balance. 

   
   YES: Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston. 

 NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

AFSCME Labor Contract Wage Opener 
 

Resolution No. 150622-13       (Carried) 
 

Motion by Councilmember Pinkston 
Second by Councilmember Hicks 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek entered into agreement with the American 
Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees on June 25, 2012 to provide 
for conditions and provisions of employment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the collective bargaining agreement, set to expire on June 30, 2016, 
did not establish a wage for the fiscal year 2016, beginning on July 1, 2015, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek approve the 
Wage Agreement between the City of Swartz Creek and the AFCSME bargaining 
unit as included herein, said agreement to include a rate increase of 2% for all 
classifications and groups, and further, authorize the Mayor and City Manager to 
execute the agreement on behalf of the City.   

 
   YES: Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath. 

 NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

 
Supervisors Association Wage Opener 
 

Resolution No. 150622-14       (Carried) 
 

  Motion by Councilmember Gilbert  
  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Abrams  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek entered into agreement with the City of 
Swartz Creek Supervisors Association on August 27, 2012 to provide for conditions 
and provisions of employment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the collective bargaining agreement, set to expire on June 30, 2016, 
did not establish a wage for the fiscal year 2016, beginning on July 1, 2015, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek approve the 
Wage Agreement between the City of Swartz Creek and the Supervisors 
Association bargaining unit as included herein, said agreement to include a rate 
increase of 2% for all classifications and groups, with the exception of the Police 

City Council Packet 39 July 13, 2015



Lieutenant, which shall be compensated $59,500 annually, and further, authorize 
the Mayor and City Manager to execute the agreement on behalf of the City.   
 

    
   YES: Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker. 

 NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

POLC Labor Contract Wage Opener 
 

Resolution No. 150622-15       (Carried) 
  
  Motion by Councilmember Hicks 
  Second by Councilmember Porath 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek entered into agreement with the Police 
Officers Labor Council on April 30, 2012 to provide for conditions and provisions of 
employment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the collective bargaining agreement, set to expire on June 30, 2016, 
did not establish a wage for the fiscal year 2016, beginning on July 1, 2015, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek approve the 
Addendum to Agreement Between the City of Swartz Creek and the Police Officers 
Labor Council Patrol Officers Unit as included herein, said agreement to include, 
among other attributes, a rate increase of 2% for all classifications and groups, and 
further, authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the addendum on behalf of 
the City.   
 

   YES: Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams. 
 NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
City Manager Years Of Service Affirmation 

 
Resolution No. 150622-16               (Carried) 

 
  Motion by Councilmember Shumaker 
  Second by Councilmember Porath 

 
WHEREAS, Mr. Zettel began fulltime employment, including benefits, for the City 
of Swartz Creek in July of 2006, and; 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Zettel resigned, effective in September 2010, after four years and 
two months service, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the city council hired Mr. Zettel, effective January 1, 2014, to serve in 
the position of city manager, a full time position with benefits,  

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek recognizes 
prior time served towards Mr. Zettel’s employment agreement as it relates to 

City Council Packet 40 July 13, 2015



vacation time, thereby making him an employee with five or more years of service 
as of January 1, 2015. 
 

   YES: Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert. 
 NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
Set 2015-2016 Council Meeting Schedule 
 
 Resolution No. 150622-17       (Carried) 
 

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Abrams 
Second by Councilmember Hicks 

 
WHEREAS, Act 261 of the Public Acts of the State of Michigan of 1968, as 
amended, requires a public notice of the schedule of regular meetings of the Swartz 
Creek City Council be given once each calendar year or fiscal year and that said 
notice shall show the regular dates and times for the meeting and the place at which 
meetings are held; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Act directs that notice be posted prominently at the principle office 
of the City of Swartz Creek or at the public building at which meetings are held or 
published in the newspaper of general circulation in Swartz Creek, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the Act, public notice is hereby given that regular 
meetings for fiscal year 2015-2016 shall be held twice each month, and further, that 
all meetings shall be held in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 8083 Civic 
Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan, unless otherwise provided in advance by the City 
Council, and further, meetings shall commence at 7:00 P.M. on the following dates: 

 
July 2015:  Monday – 13th  
   Monday – 27th     
 
August 2015:  Monday – 10th  
   Monday – 24th    
 
September 2015:  Monday – 14th 
   Monday – 28th    
 
October 2015:  Monday – 12th    (Columbus Day) 
   Monday – 26th  
 
November 2015:  Monday – 9th   
   Monday – 23rd   

 
December 2015:  Monday – 7th (One Week Earlier) 
   Monday – 14th  (Two Weeks Earlier) 
 
January 2016:  Monday – 11th  
   Monday – 25th     
 
February 2016:  Monday – 8th 

Monday – 22nd  
 

March 2016:  Monday – 14th  
   Monday – 28th  
 
April 2016:  Monday – 11th  

City Council Packet 41 July 13, 2015



   Monday – 25th 
 
May 2016:  Monday – 9th  
   Monday – 23rd   

 
June 2016:  Monday – 13th  
   Monday – 27th   
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk is hereby directed to post a copy of 
this resolution in a prominent place in the City Offices of the City of Swartz Creek. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is hereby directed to supply 
forthwith, upon request, a copy of this resolution to any newspaper of general 
circulation in the political subdivision in which the meeting will be held and/or to any 
radio or television station that regularly broadcasts into the City of Swartz Creek. 

 
   YES: Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks. 

 NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
 

MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC: 
 
Ned Gould, resides at 7237 Maplecrest Circle, wanted to thank the council for the 
consideration on the Springbrook East resolution and professionalism at the meeting.  He 
also was speaking on behalf of Mr. Woods and he wanted to thank the city for the sale of 
the property on Third St. He also wanted to let the council know that the association would 
like to pay for the City to do the future repairs to the association roads.  
Rosalie Gavriloff, resides at 4301 Maya, wanted to thank the council for resolving the 
Springbrook East matter and she is very grateful and appreciative.    
Steve Shumaker, resides at 7446 Country Meadow Dr., he wanted to know where we are 
in the process with the Mundy Twp. merger.  
Mayor David Krueger, responded that we haven’t heard of any plan yet and believes that 
they are going to set up an authority. City Manager Adam Zettel commented on the steps 
that will take place and timeframe. 
 
REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
Councilmember Shumaker commented he attended the ceremony this past Saturday at 
the Indian graveyard and Elms park afterwards.   
Councilmember Porath commented on the concert series and the ice cream social this 
past Tuesday and it was a successful night.  He also spoke that all meetings are open and 
nothing has ever been done illegally, this was in response to a comment made earlier in 
the meeting.  
Mayor Pro Tem Abrams spoke on a FOIA request at the fire department.  
Mayor Krueger spoke on the ceremony at the cemetery and the large attendance and 
support and he wanted to thank everyone who attended. He also commented on Feather & 
Fin offering free ice cream on father’s day.  
 
Adjournment 
 

Resolution No. 150622-18       (Carried) 

City Council Packet 42 July 13, 2015



 
Motion by Councilmember Porath 
Second by Councilmember Gilbert 

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek adjourn the Regular Session of the City Council 
meeting at 9:30 p.m. 

 
 YES: Unanimous Voice Vote. 

                      NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
___________________________   _____________________________ 
David A. Krueger 
Mayor      Juanita Aguilar, City Clerk 

City Council Packet 43 July 13, 2015



Ethan Webb 
7292 Reid Road 

Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
Boy Scout Troop 122 

 
I would like to create an orienteering course at Swartz Creek Elms Road Park as my 
Boy Scout Eagle Project.  The course will teach people to follow directions using a 
compass or smart phone compass app.  It will include five points with an additional 
starting/ending point at the gazebo, near playscape.  The project will include a plaque 
at the gazebo to explain the course and instructions on how to begin the course.  A 
website will be created, to be linked from the city’s website, to offer additional courses.  
I would like to complete my Eagle Project by the end of summer 2015. 

Orienteering Course at Elms Road Park 

• Teach orienteering skills to scouts and non-scouts 
• Include 5 points and a start/end point 

o 5 - 4x4 treated posts 
o Concrete 
o Each point marked with individual letter 

• Plaque with one course at gazebo 
• No additional maintenance – flush with ground, mow over posts 
• Easily enlarged to add more points if wanted in the future 

 

4x4 treated post with concrete at base below frost line 

 

 

City Council Packet 44 July 13, 2015



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

G
AZ

EB
O

 
ST

AR
T/

EN
D 

BA
LL

  
DI

AM
O

N
D 

PO
IN

TS
 

City Council Packet 45 July 13, 2015



From: James Baker
To: azettel@cityofswartzcreek.org
Subject: Crown Castle Letter Agreement - 8100 B-Civic Dr.
Date: Wednesday, June 17, 2015 9:34:05 AM
Attachments: Crown Castle Letter Agreement.pdf

W-9 Dec2014.pdf

Mr. Zettel,

We previously discussed the Crown Castle Communication Site Lease on the city's property.  We have reviewed the
 lease and identified some items which would improve it.  The attached Letter Agreement contains the items which
 would be addressed.  The primary items in the Letter Agreement are as follows:

1.  Section 1.  Additional term.  The original lease is a total of 30 years (with extensions).  We are proposing adding
 six, five year renewal terms to the existing lease.  Many leases are already extended out to 2080 and 2100.  To keep
 this site current with the industry, help retain existing tenants and attract additional tenants.  We recommend
 extending the lease at least 30 years 

2.  Section 3.   Right of First Refusal.    As you are aware there are companies (who are not carriers or tower
 owners) who contact our landlords about trying to buy the lease.  Crown has programs like this and would prefer to
 work with you directly if the city would consider exploring this. 

Crown has a monetary investment in every lease site it is important to them and their customers (wireless carriers)
 that the lease stays between the landowner, tower company and carriers.  The city is free to do what they want with
 their property; however, if the city would consider selling the lease down the road it allows Crown to match any
 offer the city has in regards to selling the lease.  The Right of First Refusal pertains only to companies who own
 facilities and are in the business of acquiring leases.  Most municipalities has limitations on selling their land and
 are not interested in selling the lease, so in most instances the Right of First Refusal is not an issue. 

3.  Land Option.  The existing lease area is 450 square feet which is fairly small for a communications site lease.  In
 order to possibly attract an additional carrier, which then reduces risk for Crown as well as the landlord, we are
 proposing an additional 400 square foot land option North and adjacent to the exiting lease area.  If Crown
 exercises the option they will pay the same dollars per square foot that is currently being paid for rent at the time. 
 The rent additional rent would increase according to the scheduled increases within the lease. 

4.  Section 2. b)  A $5,000 signing bonus would be paid to the city within 60 days of the final document being
 signed. 

I would like to briefly review the document with you and answer any questions that you have.  If you could let me if
 you have any time available next week, for a brief discussion, I would appreciate it. 

Thanks,

James Baker
Real Estate Portfolio Manager
The Lyle Company, An Authorized Crown Castle Representative
Telephone (248) 417-7771 / Email: jbaker@lyleco.com / Fax (888) 566-0110

This proposal is for discussion purposes only. The parties will not be bound in any respect until and unless a written
 agreement is signed by all parties.

City Council Packet 46 July 13, 2015

mailto:jbaker@lyleco.com
mailto:azettel@cityofswartzcreek.org



             
    
 


  


 


  
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 16, 2015 
 
 
City of Swartz Creek 
Attn: Adam Zettel - City Manager 
8083 Civic Drive  
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
(810) 635-4464 
 
RE: Business Unit # 826779 
 Site Name: Police Post 
 
 
Dear Adam: 
 


This letter agreement (“Letter Agreement”) sets forth the terms of the agreement that is to be memorialized 
between T-Mobile USA Tower LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, by CCTMO LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company, its Attorney in Fact (“Tenant”) and the City of Swartz Creek, a Michigan municipal corporation 
(“Owner”), to modify, among other things, the length of the term in the lease agreement between the Owner and 
Tenant dated December 1, 2005, as may be amended (“Lease”) for property located in Swartz Creek, Genesee 
County, Michigan (“Property”). 


For and in consideration of Fifty Dollars ($50.00) to be paid by Tenant to Owner within 30 days after full execution 
of this Letter Agreement, the parties agree as follows: 


1. Owner and Tenant will enter into an amendment to the Lease (“Lease Amendment”) wherein the term 
of the Lease will be modified.  Section 3 of the Lease provides for five (5) additional terms of five (5) years each 
(each a “Renewal Term”), with a final Lease expiration date of December 27, 2035.  The Lease will be amended by 
adding six (6) Renewal Term(s) of five (5) years each.  Upon execution of the Lease Amendment, the new final 
Lease expiration date will be December 27, 2065. 


2. In addition to the modification described above, the Lease Amendment will further modify the Lease 
to provide: 


a) If Owner receives an offer from any person or entity that owns towers or other wireless 
telecommunications facilities  (or is in the business of acquiring Owner’s interest in the Lease) to 
purchase fee title, an easement, a lease, a license, or any other interest in the Property, or Owner’s 
interest in the Lease, or an option for any of the foregoing, Owner shall provide written notice to 
Tenant of said offer, and Tenant shall have a right of first refusal to acquire such interest on the 
same terms and conditions in the offer, excluding any terms or conditions which are (i) not 
imposed in good faith or (ii) directly or indirectly designed to defeat or undermine Tenant’s 


James Baker 
The Lyle Company 
3140 Gold Camp Drive #30 
Rancho Cordova, CA  95670 
Tel: (248) 417-7771  
Fax: (888) 566-0110 


An Authorized Vendor of 
Crown Castle 


Crown Castle 


1220 Augusta Drive #500 


Houston, TX  77057 







possessory or economic interest in the Property.  If Owner's notice covers portions of Owner’s 
parent parcel beyond the Property, Tenant may elect to acquire an interest in only the Property, 
and the consideration shall be pro-rated on an acreage basis.  Owner’s notice shall include the 
prospective buyer’s name, the purchase price and/or other consideration being offered, the other 
terms and conditions of the offer, the due diligence period, the proposed closing date and, if a 
portion of Owner’s parent parcel is to be sold, leased or otherwise conveyed, a description of said 
portion.  If the Owner's notice shall provide for a due diligence period of less than sixty (60) days, 
then the due diligence period shall be extended to be sixty (60) days from exercise of the right of 
first refusal and closing shall occur no earlier than fifteen days thereafter.  If Tenant does not 
exercise its right of first refusal by written notice to Owner given within thirty (30) days, Owner 
may convey the property as described in the Owner's notice.  If Tenant declines to exercise its 
right of first refusal, then the Lease shall continue in full force and effect and Tenant's right of first 
refusal shall survive any such conveyance.  Tenant shall have the right, at its sole discretion, to 
assign the right of first refusal to any person or entity, either separate from an assignment of the 
Lease or as part of an assignment of the Lease.  Such assignment may occur either prior to or after 
Tenant’s receipt of Owner’s notice and the assignment shall be effective upon written notice to 
Owner. 


b) The Lease Amendment shall include a provision stating that Tenant will pay to Owner a one-time 
amount of Five Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($5,000.00) for the full execution of the Lease 
Amendment within 60 days of the full execution of the Lease Amendment. 


3. As further consideration for Tenant entering into the Lease Amendment, during the term of the Lease, 
Tenant shall have an irrevocable option (“Option”) to lease up to a maximum of four hundred (400) square feet of 
real property adjacent to the North side of the existing lease area at a location to be determined at Tenant’s sole 
discretion (“Additional Lease Area”) on the same terms and conditions set forth in the Lease.  If Tenant elects to 
exercise the Option, Tenant shall pay the same rent per square foot for the Additional Lease Area as the rent paid per 
square foot by Tenant for the existing lease area at the time Tenant exercises the Option.  Tenant may exercise the 
Option by providing written notice to Owner at any time.  Within 30 days after Tenant’s exercise of the Option, 
Owner shall execute and deliver an amendment to the Lease, a memorandum of lease and/or amendment, and any 
other documents necessary to grant and record Tenant’s interest in the Additional Lease Area.  In addition, within 30 
days after Tenant’s exercise of the Option, Owner shall obtain and deliver any documentation necessary to free the 
Additional Lease Area from any mortgages, deeds of trust, liens or encumbrances.   


4. Furthermore, the Lease Amendment will modify the Lease to provide that if requested by Tenant, 
Owner will execute, at Tenant's sole cost and expense, all documents required by any governmental authority in 
connection with any development of, or construction on, the Property, including documents necessary to petition the 
appropriate public bodies for certificates, permits, licenses and other approvals deemed necessary by Tenant to 
utilize the Property for the purpose of constructing, maintaining and operating communications facilities.  Owner 
will agree to be named applicant if requested by Tenant.  In furtherance of the foregoing, Owner will appoint Tenant 
as Owner's attorney-in-fact to execute all land use applications, permits, licenses and other approvals on Owner's 
behalf.   


5. Owner shall cooperate in all ways, including but not limited to providing information, signing 
documents and seeking execution by third parties of documents that will remove, subordinate or satisfy any 
mortgages, deeds of trusts, liens or other encumbrances affecting the Property. 


6. Upon receipt of this Letter Agreement evidencing Owner’s acceptance of the terms herein, Tenant 
shall submit this Letter Agreement to its property committee.  If the Letter Agreement is approved by the property 
committee, Tenant shall prepare a Lease Amendment that incorporates the terms and conditions described in this 
Letter Agreement.  In connection therewith, the parties acknowledge and agree that this Letter Agreement is 
intended to summarize the terms and conditions to be included in the Lease Amendment.  Upon receipt of the Lease 
Amendment, Owner hereby agrees to execute the Lease Amendment without any unreasonable delay.   


7. Irrespective of whether the transaction contemplated by this Letter Agreement is consummated, Owner 
and Tenant each will pay its own out-of-pocket expenses. 







8. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, Tenant has the complete right to terminate 
this Letter Agreement for any or no reason at any time prior to full execution of the Lease Amendment, without 
damages. 


9. Owner represents and warrants that Owner is duly authorized and has the full power, right and 
authority to enter into this Letter Agreement and to perform all of its obligations under this Letter Agreement and to 
execute and deliver all documents, including but not limited to the Lease Amendment, required by this Letter 
Agreement.  From the date of this Letter Agreement through the date that Owner executes the Lease Amendment, 
Owner shall use its best efforts to ensure that the foregoing representations and warranties shall remain true and 
correct and Owner shall promptly notify Tenant if any representation or warranty is or possibly may not be true or 
correct.  Owner's representations, warranties and covenants shall survive following the full execution of the Lease 
Amendment. 


 


If this Letter Agreement accurately sets forth our understanding regarding the foregoing, please so indicate by 
signing and returning to the undersigned the enclosed copy of this letter. 


 
Owner:   
City of Swartz Creek, 
a Michigan municipal corporation 
 


  


By:     


Name:     


Title:     


Date:     
 
 


Tenant:   
T-Mobile USA Tower LLC,  
a Delaware limited liability company, 
 
By:  CCTMO LLC,  


a Delaware limited liability company,  
its Attorney in Fact  
 


  


By:     


Name:     


Title:     


Date:     
 
 
 








Form    W-9
(Rev. December 2014)
Department of the Treasury  
Internal Revenue Service 


Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification


Give Form to the  
requester. Do not 
send to the IRS.


P
ri


nt
 o


r 
ty


p
e 


S
ee


 S
p


ec
ifi


c 
In


st
ru


ct
io


ns
 o


n 
p


ag
e 


2.


1  Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.


2  Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above


3  Check appropriate box for federal tax classification; check only one of the following seven boxes: 


Individual/sole proprietor or   
single-member LLC


 C Corporation S Corporation Partnership Trust/estate


Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=partnership) ▶  


Note. For a single-member LLC that is disregarded, do not check LLC; check the appropriate box in the line above for 
the tax classification of the single-member owner. 


Other (see instructions) ▶ 


4  Exemptions (codes apply only to 
certain entities, not individuals; see 
instructions on page 3):
Exempt payee code (if any)


Exemption from FATCA reporting


 code (if any)
(Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.)


5  Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.)


6  City, state, and ZIP code


Requester’s name and address (optional)


7  List account number(s) here (optional)


Part I Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)
Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid 
backup withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a 
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part I instructions on page 3. For other 
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a 
TIN on page 3.


Note. If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1 and the chart on page 4 for 
guidelines on whose number to enter.


Social security number


– –


or
Employer identification number 


–


Part II Certification
Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:


1.  The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and


2.  I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue 
Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am 
no longer subject to backup withholding; and


3.  I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and


4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.


Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding 
because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage 
interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and 
generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the 
instructions on page 3.


Sign 
Here


Signature of 
U.S. person ▶ Date ▶


General Instructions
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted.


Future developments. Information about developments affecting Form W-9 (such 
as legislation enacted after we release it) is at www.irs.gov/fw9.


Purpose of Form
An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an information 
return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer identification number (TIN) 
which may be your social security number (SSN), individual taxpayer identification 
number (ITIN), adoption taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer 
identification number (EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to 
you, or other amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information 
returns include, but are not limited to, the following:


• Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)


• Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual funds)


• Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross proceeds)


• Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other transactions by 
brokers)


• Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)


• Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)


• Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 1098-T 
(tuition)


• Form 1099-C (canceled debt)


• Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)


Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident alien), to 
provide your correct TIN. 


If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might be subject 
to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding? on page 2.


By signing the filled-out form, you: 


1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are waiting for a number 
to be issued),


2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or


3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt payee. If 
applicable, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person, your allocable share of 
any partnership income from a U.S. trade or business is not subject to the 
withholding tax on foreign partners' share of effectively connected income, and 


4. Certify that FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that you are 
exempt from the FATCA reporting, is correct. See What is FATCA reporting? on 
page 2 for further information.


Cat. No. 10231X Form W-9 (Rev. 12-2014)







Form W-9 (Rev. 12-2014) Page 2 


Note. If you are a U.S. person and a requester gives you a form other than Form 
W-9 to request your TIN, you must use the requester’s form if it is substantially 
similar to this Form W-9.


Definition of a U.S. person. For federal tax purposes, you are considered a U.S. 
person if you are:


• An individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident alien;


• A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or organized in the 
United States or under the laws of the United States;


• An estate (other than a foreign estate); or


• A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section 301.7701-7).


Special rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a trade or business in 
the United States are generally required to pay a withholding tax under section 
1446 on any foreign partners’ share of effectively connected taxable income from 
such business. Further, in certain cases where a Form W-9 has not been received, 
the rules under section 1446 require a partnership to presume that a partner is a 
foreign person, and pay the section 1446 withholding tax. Therefore, if you are a 
U.S. person that is a partner in a partnership conducting a trade or business in the 
United States, provide Form W-9 to the partnership to establish your U.S. status 
and avoid section 1446 withholding on your share of partnership income.


In the cases below, the following person must give Form W-9 to the partnership 
for purposes of establishing its U.S. status and avoiding withholding on its 
allocable share of net income from the partnership conducting a trade or business 
in the United States:


• In the case of a disregarded entity with a U.S. owner, the U.S. owner of the 
disregarded entity and not the entity;


• In the case of a grantor trust with a U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner, generally, 
the U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner of the grantor trust and not the trust; and


• In the case of a U.S. trust (other than a grantor trust), the U.S. trust (other than a 
grantor trust) and not the beneficiaries of the trust.


Foreign person. If you are a foreign person or the U.S. branch of a foreign bank 
that has elected to be treated as a U.S. person, do not use Form W-9. Instead, use 
the appropriate Form W-8 or Form 8233 (see Publication 515, Withholding of Tax 
on Nonresident Aliens and Foreign Entities).


Nonresident alien who becomes a resident alien. Generally, only a nonresident 
alien individual may use the terms of a tax treaty to reduce or eliminate U.S. tax on 
certain types of income. However, most tax treaties contain a provision known as 
a “saving clause.” Exceptions specified in the saving clause may permit an 
exemption from tax to continue for certain types of income even after the payee 
has otherwise become a U.S. resident alien for tax purposes.


If you are a U.S. resident alien who is relying on an exception contained in the 
saving clause of a tax treaty to claim an exemption from U.S. tax on certain types 
of income, you must attach a statement to Form W-9 that specifies the following 
five items:


1. The treaty country. Generally, this must be the same treaty under which you 
claimed exemption from tax as a nonresident alien.


2. The treaty article addressing the income.


3. The article number (or location) in the tax treaty that contains the saving 
clause and its exceptions.


4. The type and amount of income that qualifies for the exemption from tax.


5. Sufficient facts to justify the exemption from tax under the terms of the treaty 
article.


Example. Article 20 of the U.S.-China income tax treaty allows an exemption 
from tax for scholarship income received by a Chinese student temporarily present 
in the United States. Under U.S. law, this student will become a resident alien for 
tax purposes if his or her stay in the United States exceeds 5 calendar years. 
However, paragraph 2 of the first Protocol to the U.S.-China treaty (dated April 30, 
1984) allows the provisions of Article 20 to continue to apply even after the 
Chinese student becomes a resident alien of the United States. A Chinese student 
who qualifies for this exception (under paragraph 2 of the first protocol) and is 
relying on this exception to claim an exemption from tax on his or her scholarship 
or fellowship income would attach to Form W-9 a statement that includes the 
information described above to support that exemption.


If you are a nonresident alien or a foreign entity, give the requester the 
appropriate completed Form W-8 or Form 8233.


Backup Withholding
What is backup withholding? Persons making certain payments to you must 
under certain conditions withhold and pay to the IRS 28% of such payments. This 
is called “backup withholding.”  Payments that may be subject to backup 
withholding include interest, tax-exempt interest, dividends, broker and barter 
exchange transactions, rents, royalties, nonemployee pay, payments made in 
settlement of payment card and third party network transactions, and certain 
payments from fishing boat operators. Real estate transactions are not subject to 
backup withholding.


You will not be subject to backup withholding on payments you receive if you 
give the requester your correct TIN, make the proper certifications, and report all 
your taxable interest and dividends on your tax return.


Payments you receive will be subject to backup withholding if: 


1. You do not furnish your TIN to the requester,


2. You do not certify your TIN when required (see the Part II instructions on page 
3 for details),


3. The IRS tells the requester that you furnished an incorrect TIN,


4. The IRS tells you that you are subject to backup withholding because you did 
not report all your interest and dividends on your tax return (for reportable interest 
and dividends only), or


5. You do not certify to the requester that you are not subject to backup 
withholding under 4 above (for reportable interest and dividend accounts opened 
after 1983 only).


Certain payees and payments are exempt from backup withholding. See Exempt 
payee code on page 3 and the separate Instructions for the Requester of Form 
W-9 for more information.


Also see Special rules for partnerships above.


What is FATCA reporting?
The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) requires a participating foreign 
financial institution to report all United States account holders that are specified 
United States persons. Certain payees are exempt from FATCA reporting. See 
Exemption from FATCA reporting code on page 3 and the Instructions for the 
Requester of Form W-9 for more information.


Updating Your Information
You must provide updated information to any person to whom you claimed to be 
an exempt payee if you are no longer an exempt payee and anticipate receiving 
reportable payments in the future from this person. For example, you may need to 
provide updated information if you are a C corporation that elects to be an S 
corporation, or if you no longer are tax exempt. In addition, you must furnish a new 
Form W-9 if the name or TIN changes for the account; for example, if the grantor 
of a grantor trust dies.


Penalties
Failure to furnish TIN. If you fail to furnish your correct TIN to a requester, you are 
subject to a penalty of $50 for each such failure unless your failure is due to 
reasonable cause and not to willful neglect.


Civil penalty for false information with respect to withholding. If you make a 
false statement with no reasonable basis that results in no backup withholding, 
you are subject to a $500 penalty.


Criminal penalty for falsifying information. Willfully falsifying certifications or 
affirmations may subject you to criminal penalties including fines and/or 
imprisonment.


Misuse of TINs. If the requester discloses or uses TINs in violation of federal law, 
the requester may be subject to civil and criminal penalties.


Specific Instructions
Line 1
You must enter one of the following on this line; do not leave this line blank. The 
name should match the name on your tax return.


If this Form W-9 is for a joint account, list first, and then circle, the name of the 
person or entity whose number you entered in Part I of Form W-9.


a.  Individual. Generally, enter the name shown on your tax return. If you have 
changed your last name without informing the Social Security Administration (SSA) 
of the name change, enter your first name, the last name as shown on your social 
security card, and your new last name.  


Note. ITIN applicant: Enter your individual name as it was entered on your Form 
W-7 application, line 1a. This should also be the same as the name you entered on 
the Form 1040/1040A/1040EZ you filed with your application.


b.  Sole proprietor or single-member LLC. Enter your individual name as 
shown on your 1040/1040A/1040EZ on line 1. You may enter your business, trade, 
or “doing business as” (DBA) name on line 2.


c.  Partnership, LLC that is not a single-member LLC, C Corporation, or S 
Corporation. Enter the entity's name as shown on the entity's tax return on line 1 
and any business, trade, or DBA name on line 2.


d.  Other entities. Enter your name as shown on required U.S. federal tax 
documents on line 1. This name should match the name shown on the charter or 
other legal document creating the entity. You may enter any business, trade, or 
DBA name on line 2.


e.  Disregarded entity. For U.S. federal tax purposes, an entity that is 
disregarded as an entity separate from its owner is treated as a “disregarded 
entity.”  See Regulations section 301.7701-2(c)(2)(iii). Enter the owner's name on 
line 1. The name of the entity entered on line 1 should never be a disregarded 
entity. The name on line 1 should be the name shown on the income tax return on 
which the income should be reported. For example, if a foreign LLC that is treated 
as a disregarded entity for U.S. federal tax purposes has a single owner that is a 
U.S. person, the U.S. owner's name is required to be provided on line 1. If the 
direct owner of the entity is also a disregarded entity, enter the first owner that is 
not disregarded for federal tax purposes. Enter the disregarded entity's name on 
line 2, “Business name/disregarded entity name.” If the owner of the disregarded 
entity is a foreign person, the owner must complete an appropriate Form W-8 
instead of a Form W-9.  This is the case even if the foreign person has a U.S. TIN. 







Form W-9 (Rev. 12-2014) Page 3 


Line 2
If you have a business name, trade name, DBA name, or disregarded entity name, 
you may enter it on line 2.


Line 3
Check the appropriate box in line 3 for the U.S. federal tax classification of the 
person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one box in line 3.


Limited Liability Company (LLC). If the name on line 1 is an LLC treated as a 
partnership for U.S. federal tax purposes, check the “Limited Liability Company” 
box and enter “P” in the space provided. If the LLC has filed Form 8832 or 2553 to 
be taxed as a corporation, check the “Limited Liability Company” box and in the 
space provided enter “C” for C corporation or “S” for S corporation. If it is a   
single-member LLC that is a disregarded entity, do not check the “Limited Liability 
Company” box; instead check the first box in line 3 “Individual/sole proprietor or 
single-member LLC.”


Line 4, Exemptions
If you are exempt from backup withholding and/or FATCA reporting, enter in the 
appropriate space in line 4 any code(s) that may apply to you.


Exempt payee code.
•  Generally, individuals (including sole proprietors) are not exempt from backup 
withholding.


•  Except as provided below, corporations are exempt from backup withholding 
for certain payments, including interest and dividends.


•  Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding for payments made in 
settlement of payment card or third party network transactions.


•  Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding with respect to attorneys' 
fees or gross proceeds paid to attorneys, and corporations that provide medical or 
health care services are not exempt with respect to payments reportable on Form 
1099-MISC.


The following codes identify payees that are exempt from backup withholding. 
Enter the appropriate code in the space in line 4.


1—An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a), any IRA, or a 
custodial account under section 403(b)(7) if the account satisfies the requirements 
of section 401(f)(2)


2—The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities


3—A state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or possession, or 
any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities


4—A foreign government or any of its political subdivisions, agencies, or 
instrumentalities 


5—A corporation


6—A dealer in securities or commodities required to register in the United 
States, the District of Columbia, or a U.S. commonwealth or possession 


7—A futures commission merchant registered with the Commodity Futures 
Trading Commission


8—A real estate investment trust


9—An entity registered at all times during the tax year under the Investment 
Company Act of 1940


10—A common trust fund operated by a bank under section 584(a)


11—A financial institution


12—A middleman known in the investment community as a nominee or 
custodian


13—A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947


The following chart shows types of payments that may be exempt from backup 
withholding. The chart applies to the exempt payees listed above, 1 through 13.


IF the payment is for . . . THEN the payment is exempt for . . .


Interest and dividend payments All exempt payees except 
for 7


Broker transactions Exempt payees 1 through 4 and 6 
through 11 and all C corporations. S 
corporations must not enter an exempt 
payee code because they are exempt 
only for sales of noncovered securities 
acquired prior to 2012. 


Barter exchange transactions and 
patronage dividends


Exempt payees 1 through 4


Payments over $600 required to be 
reported and direct sales over $5,0001


Generally, exempt payees 
1 through 52


Payments made in settlement of 
payment card or third party network 
transactions 


Exempt payees 1 through 4


1 See Form 1099-MISC, Miscellaneous Income, and its instructions.


2 However, the following payments made to a corporation and reportable on Form 
1099-MISC are not exempt from backup withholding: medical and health care 
payments, attorneys' fees, gross proceeds paid to an attorney reportable under 
section 6045(f), and payments for services paid by a federal executive agency.


Exemption from FATCA reporting code. The following codes identify payees 
that are exempt from reporting under FATCA. These codes apply to persons 
submitting this form for accounts maintained outside of the United States by 
certain foreign financial institutions. Therefore, if you are only submitting this form 
for an account you hold in the United States, you may leave this field blank. 
Consult with the person requesting this form if you are uncertain if the financial 
institution is subject to these requirements. A requester may indicate that a code is 
not required by providing you with a Form W-9 with “Not Applicable” (or any 
similar indication) written or printed on the line for a FATCA exemption code.


A—An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a) or any individual 
retirement plan as defined in section 7701(a)(37)


B—The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities


C—A state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or possession, or 
any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities


D—A corporation the stock of which is regularly traded on one or more 
established securities markets, as described in Regulations section         
1.1472-1(c)(1)(i)


E—A corporation that is a member of the same expanded affiliated group as a 
corporation described in Regulations section 1.1472-1(c)(1)(i)


F—A dealer in securities, commodities, or derivative financial instruments 
(including notional principal contracts, futures, forwards, and options) that is 
registered as such under the laws of the United States or any state


G—A real estate investment trust


H—A regulated investment company as defined in section 851 or an entity 
registered at all times during the tax year under the Investment Company Act of 
1940


I—A common trust fund as defined in section 584(a)


J—A bank as defined in section 581


K—A broker


L—A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947(a)(1)


M—A tax exempt trust under a section 403(b) plan or section 457(g) plan


Note. You may wish to consult with the financial institution requesting this form to 
determine whether the FATCA code and/or exempt payee code should be 
completed.


Line 5
Enter your address (number, street, and apartment or suite number). This is where 
the requester of this Form W-9 will mail your information returns.


Line 6
Enter your city, state, and ZIP code.


Part I. Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)
Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. If you are a resident alien and you do not 
have and are not eligible to get an SSN, your TIN is your IRS individual taxpayer 
identification number (ITIN). Enter it in the social security number box. If you do not 
have an ITIN, see How to get a TIN below.


If you are a sole proprietor and you have an EIN, you may enter either your SSN 
or EIN. However, the IRS prefers that you use your SSN.


If you are a single-member LLC that is disregarded as an entity separate from its 
owner (see Limited Liability Company (LLC) on this page), enter the owner’s SSN 
(or EIN, if the owner has one). Do not enter the disregarded entity’s EIN. If the LLC 
is classified as a corporation or partnership, enter the entity’s EIN.


Note. See the chart on page 4 for further clarification of name and TIN 
combinations.


How to get a TIN. If you do not have a TIN, apply for one immediately. To apply 
for an SSN, get Form SS-5, Application for a Social Security Card, from your local 
SSA office or get this form online at www.ssa.gov. You may also get this form by 
calling 1-800-772-1213. Use Form W-7, Application for IRS Individual Taxpayer 
Identification Number, to apply for an ITIN, or Form SS-4, Application for Employer 
Identification Number, to apply for an EIN. You can apply for an EIN online by 
accessing the IRS website at www.irs.gov/businesses and clicking on Employer 
Identification Number (EIN) under Starting a Business. You can get Forms W-7 and 
SS-4 from the IRS by visiting IRS.gov or by calling 1-800-TAX-FORM 
(1-800-829-3676).


If you are asked to complete Form W-9 but do not have a TIN, apply for a TIN 
and write “Applied For” in the space for the TIN, sign and date the form, and give it 
to the requester. For interest and dividend payments, and certain payments made 
with respect to readily tradable instruments, generally you will have 60 days to get 
a TIN and give it to the requester before you are subject to backup withholding on 
payments. The 60-day rule does not apply to other types of payments. You will be 
subject to backup withholding on all such payments until you provide your TIN to 
the requester.


Note. Entering “Applied For” means that you have already applied for a TIN or that 
you intend to apply for one soon.


Caution: A disregarded U.S. entity that has a foreign owner must use the 
appropriate Form W-8.







Form W-9 (Rev. 12-2014) Page 4 


Part II. Certification
To establish to the withholding agent that you are a U.S. person, or resident alien, 
sign Form W-9. You may be requested to sign by the withholding agent even if 
items 1, 4, or 5 below indicate otherwise.


For a joint account, only the person whose TIN is shown in Part I should sign 
(when required). In the case of a disregarded entity, the person identified on line 1 
must sign. Exempt payees, see Exempt payee code earlier.


Signature requirements. Complete the certification as indicated in items 1 
through 5 below.


1. Interest, dividend, and barter exchange accounts opened before 1984 
and broker accounts considered active during 1983. You must give your 
correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.


2. Interest, dividend, broker, and barter exchange accounts opened after 
1983 and broker accounts considered inactive during 1983. You must sign the 
certification or backup withholding will apply. If you are subject to backup 
withholding and you are merely providing your correct TIN to the requester, you 
must cross out item 2 in the certification before signing the form.


3. Real estate transactions. You must sign the certification. You may cross out 
item 2 of the certification.


4. Other payments. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign 
the certification unless you have been notified that you have previously given an 
incorrect TIN. “Other payments” include payments made in the course of the 
requester’s trade or business for rents, royalties, goods (other than bills for 
merchandise), medical and health care services (including payments to 
corporations), payments to a nonemployee for services, payments made in 
settlement of payment card and third party network transactions, payments to 
certain fishing boat crew members and fishermen, and gross proceeds paid to 
attorneys (including payments to corporations).


5. Mortgage interest paid by you, acquisition or abandonment of secured 
property, cancellation of debt, qualified tuition program payments (under 
section 529), IRA, Coverdell ESA, Archer MSA or HSA contributions or 
distributions, and pension distributions. You must give your correct TIN, but you 
do not have to sign the certification.


What Name and Number To Give the Requester
For this type of account: Give name and SSN of:


1. Individual The individual
2. Two or more individuals (joint             


account)
The actual owner of the account or, 
if combined funds, the first 
individual on the account1


3. Custodian account of a minor 
 (Uniform Gift to Minors Act)


The minor2


4. a. The usual revocable savings 
trust (grantor is also trustee) 
b. So-called trust account that is 
not a legal or valid trust under 
state law


The grantor-trustee1


The actual owner1


5. Sole proprietorship or disregarded 
entity owned by an individual


The owner3


6. Grantor trust filing under Optional 
Form 1099 Filing Method 1 (see 
Regulations section 1.671-4(b)(2)(i)
(A))


The grantor*


For this type of account: Give name and EIN of:


7. Disregarded entity not owned by an 
individual


The owner


8. A valid trust, estate, or pension trust Legal entity4


9. Corporation or LLC electing 
corporate status on Form 8832 or 
Form 2553


The corporation


10. Association, club, religious, 
charitable, educational, or other tax-
exempt organization


The organization


11. Partnership or multi-member LLC The partnership
12. A broker or registered nominee The broker or nominee


13. Account with the Department of 
Agriculture in the name of a public 
entity (such as a state or local 
government, school district, or 
prison) that receives agricultural 
program payments


The public entity


14. Grantor trust filing under the Form 
1041 Filing Method or the Optional 
Form 1099 Filing Method 2 (see 
Regulations section 1.671-4(b)(2)(i)
(B))


The trust


1
 List first and circle the name of the person whose number you furnish. If only one person on a 
joint account has an SSN, that person’s number must be furnished.


2
 Circle the minor’s name and furnish the minor’s SSN.


3
 You must show your individual name and you may also enter your business or DBA name on 
the “Business name/disregarded entity” name line. You may use either your SSN or EIN (if you 
have one), but the IRS encourages you to use your SSN.


4
 List first and circle the name of the trust, estate, or pension trust. (Do not furnish the TIN of the 
personal representative or trustee unless the legal entity itself is not designated in the account 
title.) Also see  Special rules for partnerships on page 2.


*Note. Grantor also must provide a Form W-9 to trustee of trust.


Note. If no name is circled when more than one name is listed, the number will be 
considered to be that of the first name listed.


Secure Your Tax Records from Identity Theft
Identity theft occurs when someone uses your personal information such as your 
name, SSN, or other identifying information, without your permission, to commit 
fraud or other crimes. An identity thief may use your SSN to get a job or may file a 
tax return using your SSN to receive a refund.


To reduce your risk:


• Protect your SSN,


• Ensure your employer is protecting your SSN, and


• Be careful when choosing a tax preparer.


If your tax records are affected by identity theft and you receive a notice from 
the IRS, respond right away to the name and phone number printed on the IRS 
notice or letter.


If your tax records are not currently affected by identity theft but you think you 
are at risk due to a lost or stolen purse or wallet, questionable credit card activity 
or credit report, contact the IRS Identity Theft Hotline at 1-800-908-4490 or submit 
Form 14039.


For more information, see Publication 4535, Identity Theft Prevention and Victim 
Assistance.


Victims of identity theft who are experiencing economic harm or a system 
problem, or are seeking help in resolving tax problems that have not been resolved 
through normal channels, may be eligible for Taxpayer Advocate Service (TAS) 
assistance. You can reach TAS by calling the TAS toll-free case intake line at 
1-877-777-4778 or TTY/TDD 1-800-829-4059.


Protect yourself from suspicious emails or phishing schemes.  Phishing is the 
creation and use of email and websites designed to mimic legitimate business 
emails and websites. The most common act is sending an email to a user falsely 
claiming to be an established legitimate enterprise in an attempt to scam the user 
into surrendering private information that will be used for identity theft.


The IRS does not initiate contacts with taxpayers via emails. Also, the IRS does 
not request personal detailed information through email or ask taxpayers for the 
PIN numbers, passwords, or similar secret access information for their credit card, 
bank, or other financial accounts.


If you receive an unsolicited email claiming to be from the IRS, forward this 
message to phishing@irs.gov. You may also report misuse of the IRS name, logo, 
or other IRS property to the Treasury Inspector General for Tax Administration 
(TIGTA) at 1-800-366-4484. You can forward suspicious emails to the Federal 
Trade Commission at: spam@uce.gov or contact them at www.ftc.gov/idtheft or 
1-877-IDTHEFT (1-877-438-4338).


Visit IRS.gov to learn more about identity theft and how to reduce your risk.


Privacy Act Notice
Section 6109 of the Internal Revenue Code requires you to provide your correct 
TIN to persons (including federal agencies) who are required to file information 
returns with the IRS to report interest, dividends, or certain other income paid to 
you; mortgage interest you paid; the acquisition or abandonment of secured 
property; the cancellation of debt; or contributions you made to an IRA, Archer 
MSA, or HSA. The person collecting this form uses the information on the form to 
file information returns with the IRS, reporting the above information. Routine uses 
of this information include giving it to the Department of Justice for civil and 
criminal litigation and to cities, states, the District of Columbia, and U.S. 
commonwealths and possessions for use in administering their laws. The 
information also may be disclosed to other countries under a treaty, to federal and 
state agencies to enforce civil and criminal laws, or to federal law enforcement and 
intelligence agencies to combat terrorism. You must provide your TIN whether or 
not you are required to file a tax return. Under section 3406, payers must generally 
withhold a percentage of taxable interest, dividend, and certain other payments to 
a payee who does not give a TIN to the payer. Certain penalties may also apply for 
providing false or fraudulent information.





Version A, Cycle 4

Fillable Fields: Font size=9 pt; Color=Black  

INTERNAL USE ONLY DRAFT AS OF December 16, 2014

Form W-9 (Rev. December 2014)

SE:W:CAR:MP

Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification

Form    W-9

(Rev. December 2014)

Revised December 2014. Catalog Number 10231X. 

Department of the Treasury  Internal Revenue Service 

Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification

Give Form to the 
requester. Do not
send to the IRS.

Print or typeSee Specific Instructions on page 2.

3  Check appropriate box for federal tax classification; check only one of the following seven boxes: 

Individual/sole proprietor or   single-member LLC

Note. For a single-member LLC that is disregarded, do not check LLC; check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner. 

4  Exemptions (codes apply only to certain entities, not individuals; see instructions on page 3):

Exemption from FATCA reporting

(Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.)

Part I

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid backup withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part I instructions on page 3. For other entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a TIN on page 3.

Note. If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1 and the chart on page 4 for guidelines on whose number to enter.

Social security number

–

–

or

Employer identification number 

–

Part II

Certification

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:

1.  The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and

2.  I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding; and

3.  I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions on page 3.

Sign
Here

Signature ofU.S. person ▶

Date ▶

General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted.

Future developments. Information about developments affecting Form W-9 (such as legislation enacted after we release it) is at www.irs.gov/fw9.

Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number (SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number (EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information returns include, but are not limited to, the following:

• Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)

• Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual funds)

• Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross proceeds)

• Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other transactions by brokers)

• Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)

• Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)

• Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 1098-T (tuition)

• Form 1099-C (canceled debt)

• Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident alien), to provide your correct TIN. 

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding? on page 2.

By signing the filled-out form, you: 

1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are waiting for a number to be issued),

2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or

3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt payee. If applicable, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person, your allocable share of any partnership income from a U.S. trade or business is not subject to the withholding tax on foreign partners' share of effectively connected income, and 

4. Certify that FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that you are exempt from the FATCA reporting, is correct. See What is FATCA reporting? on page 2 for further information.

Cat. No. 10231X

Form W-9 (Rev. 12-2014)

Form W-9 (Rev. 12-2014)

Page 2 

Note. If you are a U.S. person and a requester gives you a form other than Form W-9 to request your TIN, you must use the requester’s form if it is substantially similar to this Form W-9.

Definition of a U.S. person. For federal tax purposes, you are considered a U.S. person if you are:

• An individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident alien;

• A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or organized in the United States or under the laws of the United States;

• An estate (other than a foreign estate); or

• A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section 301.7701-7).

Special rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a trade or business in the United States are generally required to pay a withholding tax under section 1446 on any foreign partners’ share of effectively connected taxable income from such business. Further, in certain cases where a Form W-9 has not been received, the rules under section 1446 require a partnership to presume that a partner is a foreign person, and pay the section 1446 withholding tax. Therefore, if you are a U.S. person that is a partner in a partnership conducting a trade or business in the United States, provide Form W-9 to the partnership to establish your U.S. status and avoid section 1446 withholding on your share of partnership income.

In the cases below, the following person must give Form W-9 to the partnership for purposes of establishing its U.S. status and avoiding withholding on its allocable share of net income from the partnership conducting a trade or business in the United States:

• In the case of a disregarded entity with a U.S. owner, the U.S. owner of the disregarded entity and not the entity;

• In the case of a grantor trust with a U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner, generally, the U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner of the grantor trust and not the trust; and

• In the case of a U.S. trust (other than a grantor trust), the U.S. trust (other than a grantor trust) and not the beneficiaries of the trust.

Foreign person. If you are a foreign person or the U.S. branch of a foreign bank that has elected to be treated as a U.S. person, do not use Form W-9. Instead, use the appropriate Form W-8 or Form 8233 (see Publication 515, Withholding of Tax on Nonresident Aliens and Foreign Entities).

Nonresident alien who becomes a resident alien. Generally, only a nonresident alien individual may use the terms of a tax treaty to reduce or eliminate U.S. tax on certain types of income. However, most tax treaties contain a provision known as a “saving clause.” Exceptions specified in the saving clause may permit an exemption from tax to continue for certain types of income even after the payee has otherwise become a U.S. resident alien for tax purposes.

If you are a U.S. resident alien who is relying on an exception contained in the saving clause of a tax treaty to claim an exemption from U.S. tax on certain types of income, you must attach a statement to Form W-9 that specifies the following five items:

1. The treaty country. Generally, this must be the same treaty under which you claimed exemption from tax as a nonresident alien.

2. The treaty article addressing the income.

3. The article number (or location) in the tax treaty that contains the saving clause and its exceptions.

4. The type and amount of income that qualifies for the exemption from tax.

5. Sufficient facts to justify the exemption from tax under the terms of the treaty article.

Example. Article 20 of the U.S.-China income tax treaty allows an exemption from tax for scholarship income received by a Chinese student temporarily present in the United States. Under U.S. law, this student will become a resident alien for tax purposes if his or her stay in the United States exceeds 5 calendar years. However, paragraph 2 of the first Protocol to the U.S.-China treaty (dated April 30, 1984) allows the provisions of Article 20 to continue to apply even after the Chinese student becomes a resident alien of the United States. A Chinese student who qualifies for this exception (under paragraph 2 of the first protocol) and is relying on this exception to claim an exemption from tax on his or her scholarship or fellowship income would attach to Form W-9 a statement that includes the information described above to support that exemption.

If you are a nonresident alien or a foreign entity, give the requester the appropriate completed Form W-8 or Form 8233.

Backup Withholding

What is backup withholding? Persons making certain payments to you must under certain conditions withhold and pay to the IRS 28% of such payments. This is called “backup withholding.”  Payments that may be subject to backup withholding include interest, tax-exempt interest, dividends, broker and barter exchange transactions, rents, royalties, nonemployee pay, payments made in settlement of payment card and third party network transactions, and certain payments from fishing boat operators. Real estate transactions are not subject to backup withholding.

You will not be subject to backup withholding on payments you receive if you give the requester your correct TIN, make the proper certifications, and report all your taxable interest and dividends on your tax return.

Payments you receive will be subject to backup withholding if: 

1. You do not furnish your TIN to the requester,

2. You do not certify your TIN when required (see the Part II instructions on page 3 for details),

3. The IRS tells the requester that you furnished an incorrect TIN,

4. The IRS tells you that you are subject to backup withholding because you did not report all your interest and dividends on your tax return (for reportable interest and dividends only), or

5. You do not certify to the requester that you are not subject to backup withholding under 4 above (for reportable interest and dividend accounts opened after 1983 only).

Certain payees and payments are exempt from backup withholding. See Exempt payee code on page 3 and the separate Instructions for the Requester of Form W-9 for more information.

Also see Special rules for partnerships above.

What is FATCA reporting?

The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) requires a participating foreign financial institution to report all United States account holders that are specified United States persons. Certain payees are exempt from FATCA reporting. See Exemption from FATCA reporting code on page 3 and the Instructions for the Requester of Form W-9 for more information.

Updating Your Information

You must provide updated information to any person to whom you claimed to be an exempt payee if you are no longer an exempt payee and anticipate receiving reportable payments in the future from this person. For example, you may need to provide updated information if you are a C corporation that elects to be an S corporation, or if you no longer are tax exempt. In addition, you must furnish a new Form W-9 if the name or TIN changes for the account; for example, if the grantor of a grantor trust dies.

Penalties

Failure to furnish TIN. If you fail to furnish your correct TIN to a requester, you are subject to a penalty of $50 for each such failure unless your failure is due to reasonable cause and not to willful neglect.

Civil penalty for false information with respect to withholding. If you make a false statement with no reasonable basis that results in no backup withholding, you are subject to a $500 penalty.

Criminal penalty for falsifying information. Willfully falsifying certifications or affirmations may subject you to criminal penalties including fines and/or imprisonment.

Misuse of TINs. If the requester discloses or uses TINs in violation of federal law, the requester may be subject to civil and criminal penalties.

Specific Instructions

Line 1

You must enter one of the following on this line; do not leave this line blank. The name should match the name on your tax return.

If this Form W-9 is for a joint account, list first, and then circle, the name of the person or entity whose number you entered in Part I of Form W-9.

a.  Individual. Generally, enter the name shown on your tax return. If you have changed your last name without informing the Social Security Administration (SSA) of the name change, enter your first name, the last name as shown on your social security card, and your new last name.  

Note. ITIN applicant: Enter your individual name as it was entered on your Form W-7 application, line 1a. This should also be the same as the name you entered on the Form 1040/1040A/1040EZ you filed with your application.

b.  Sole proprietor or single-member LLC. Enter your individual name as shown on your 1040/1040A/1040EZ on line 1. You may enter your business, trade, or “doing business as” (DBA) name on line 2.

c.  Partnership, LLC that is not a single-member LLC, C Corporation, or S Corporation. Enter the entity's name as shown on the entity's tax return on line 1 and any business, trade, or DBA name on line 2.

d.  Other entities. Enter your name as shown on required U.S. federal tax documents on line 1. This name should match the name shown on the charter or other legal document creating the entity. You may enter any business, trade, or DBA name on line 2.

e.  Disregarded entity. For U.S. federal tax purposes, an entity that is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner is treated as a “disregarded entity.”  See Regulations section 301.7701-2(c)(2)(iii). Enter the owner's name on line 1. The name of the entity entered on line 1 should never be a disregarded entity. The name on line 1 should be the name shown on the income tax return on which the income should be reported. For example, if a foreign LLC that is treated as a disregarded entity for U.S. federal tax purposes has a single owner that is a U.S. person, the U.S. owner's name is required to be provided on line 1. If the direct owner of the entity is also a disregarded entity, enter the first owner that is not disregarded for federal tax purposes. Enter the disregarded entity's name on line 2, “Business name/disregarded entity name.” If the owner of the disregarded entity is a foreign person, the owner must complete an appropriate Form W-8 instead of a Form W-9.  This is the case even if the foreign person has a U.S. TIN. 

Form W-9 (Rev. 12-2014)

Page 3 

Line 2

If you have a business name, trade name, DBA name, or disregarded entity name, you may enter it on line 2.

Line 3

Check the appropriate box in line 3 for the U.S. federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one box in line 3.

Limited Liability Company (LLC). If the name on line 1 is an LLC treated as a partnership for U.S. federal tax purposes, check the “Limited Liability Company” box and enter “P” in the space provided. If the LLC has filed Form 8832 or 2553 to be taxed as a corporation, check the “Limited Liability Company” box and in the space provided enter “C” for C corporation or “S” for S corporation. If it is a   single-member LLC that is a disregarded entity, do not check the “Limited Liability Company” box; instead check the first box in line 3 “Individual/sole proprietor or single-member LLC.”

Line 4, Exemptions

If you are exempt from backup withholding and/or FATCA reporting, enter in the appropriate space in line 4 any code(s) that may apply to you.

Exempt payee code.

•  Generally, individuals (including sole proprietors) are not exempt from backup withholding.

•  Except as provided below, corporations are exempt from backup withholding for certain payments, including interest and dividends.

•  Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding for payments made in settlement of payment card or third party network transactions.

•  Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding with respect to attorneys' fees or gross proceeds paid to attorneys, and corporations that provide medical or health care services are not exempt with respect to payments reportable on Form 1099-MISC.

The following codes identify payees that are exempt from backup withholding. Enter the appropriate code in the space in line 4.

1—An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a), any IRA, or a custodial account under section 403(b)(7) if the account satisfies the requirements of section 401(f)(2)

2—The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities

3—A state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or possession, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities

4—A foreign government or any of its political subdivisions, agencies, or instrumentalities 

5—A corporation

6—A dealer in securities or commodities required to register in the United States, the District of Columbia, or a U.S. commonwealth or possession 

7—A futures commission merchant registered with the Commodity Futures Trading Commission

8—A real estate investment trust

9—An entity registered at all times during the tax year under the Investment Company Act of 1940

10—A common trust fund operated by a bank under section 584(a)

11—A financial institution

12—A middleman known in the investment community as a nominee or custodian

13—A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947

The following chart shows types of payments that may be exempt from backup withholding. The chart applies to the exempt payees listed above, 1 through 13.

IF the payment is for . . .

THEN the payment is exempt for . . .

Interest and dividend payments

All exempt payees except
for 7

Broker transactions

Exempt payees 1 through 4 and 6 through 11 and all C corporations. S corporations must not enter an exempt payee code because they are exempt only for sales of noncovered securities acquired prior to 2012. 

Barter exchange transactions and patronage dividends

Exempt payees 1 through 4

Payments over $600 required to be reported and direct sales over $5,0001

Generally, exempt payees1 through 52

Payments made in settlement of payment card or third party network transactions 

Exempt payees 1 through 4

1 See Form 1099-MISC, Miscellaneous Income, and its instructions.

2 However, the following payments made to a corporation and reportable on Form 1099-MISC are not exempt from backup withholding: medical and health care payments, attorneys' fees, gross proceeds paid to an attorney reportable under section 6045(f), and payments for services paid by a federal executive agency.

Exemption from FATCA reporting code. The following codes identify payees that are exempt from reporting under FATCA. These codes apply to persons submitting this form for accounts maintained outside of the United States by certain foreign financial institutions. Therefore, if you are only submitting this form for an account you hold in the United States, you may leave this field blank. Consult with the person requesting this form if you are uncertain if the financial institution is subject to these requirements. A requester may indicate that a code is not required by providing you with a Form W-9 with “Not Applicable” (or any similar indication) written or printed on the line for a FATCA exemption code.

A—An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a) or any individual retirement plan as defined in section 7701(a)(37)

B—The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities

C—A state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or possession, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities

D—A corporation the stock of which is regularly traded on one or more established securities markets, as described in Regulations section         1.1472-1(c)(1)(i)

E—A corporation that is a member of the same expanded affiliated group as a corporation described in Regulations section 1.1472-1(c)(1)(i)

F—A dealer in securities, commodities, or derivative financial instruments (including notional principal contracts, futures, forwards, and options) that is registered as such under the laws of the United States or any state

G—A real estate investment trust

H—A regulated investment company as defined in section 851 or an entity registered at all times during the tax year under the Investment Company Act of 1940

I—A common trust fund as defined in section 584(a)

J—A bank as defined in section 581

K—A broker

L—A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947(a)(1)

M—A tax exempt trust under a section 403(b) plan or section 457(g) plan

Note. You may wish to consult with the financial institution requesting this form to determine whether the FATCA code and/or exempt payee code should be completed.

Line 5

Enter your address (number, street, and apartment or suite number). This is where the requester of this Form W-9 will mail your information returns.

Line 6

Enter your city, state, and ZIP code.

Part I. Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. If you are a resident alien and you do not have and are not eligible to get an SSN, your TIN is your IRS individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN). Enter it in the social security number box. If you do not have an ITIN, see How to get a TIN below.

If you are a sole proprietor and you have an EIN, you may enter either your SSN or EIN. However, the IRS prefers that you use your SSN.

If you are a single-member LLC that is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner (see Limited Liability Company (LLC) on this page), enter the owner’s SSN (or EIN, if the owner has one). Do not enter the disregarded entity’s EIN. If the LLC is classified as a corporation or partnership, enter the entity’s EIN.

Note. See the chart on page 4 for further clarification of name and TIN combinations.

How to get a TIN. If you do not have a TIN, apply for one immediately. To apply for an SSN, get Form SS-5, Application for a Social Security Card, from your local SSA office or get this form online at www.ssa.gov. You may also get this form by calling 1-800-772-1213. Use Form W-7, Application for IRS Individual Taxpayer Identification Number, to apply for an ITIN, or Form SS-4, Application for Employer Identification Number, to apply for an EIN. You can apply for an EIN online by accessing the IRS website at www.irs.gov/businesses and clicking on Employer Identification Number (EIN) under Starting a Business. You can get Forms W-7 and SS-4 from the IRS by visiting IRS.gov or by calling 1-800-TAX-FORM (1-800-829-3676).

If you are asked to complete Form W-9 but do not have a TIN, apply for a TIN and write “Applied For” in the space for the TIN, sign and date the form, and give it to the requester. For interest and dividend payments, and certain payments made with respect to readily tradable instruments, generally you will have 60 days to get a TIN and give it to the requester before you are subject to backup withholding on payments. The 60-day rule does not apply to other types of payments. You will be subject to backup withholding on all such payments until you provide your TIN to the requester.

Note. Entering “Applied For” means that you have already applied for a TIN or that you intend to apply for one soon.

Caution: A disregarded U.S. entity that has a foreign owner must use the appropriate Form W-8.

Form W-9 (Rev. 12-2014)

Page 4 

Part II. Certification

To establish to the withholding agent that you are a U.S. person, or resident alien, sign Form W-9. You may be requested to sign by the withholding agent even if items 1, 4, or 5 below indicate otherwise.

For a joint account, only the person whose TIN is shown in Part I should sign (when required). In the case of a disregarded entity, the person identified on line 1 must sign. Exempt payees, see Exempt payee code earlier.

Signature requirements. Complete the certification as indicated in items 1 through 5 below.

1. Interest, dividend, and barter exchange accounts opened before 1984 and broker accounts considered active during 1983. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.

2. Interest, dividend, broker, and barter exchange accounts opened after 1983 and broker accounts considered inactive during 1983. You must sign the certification or backup withholding will apply. If you are subject to backup withholding and you are merely providing your correct TIN to the requester, you must cross out item 2 in the certification before signing the form.

3. Real estate transactions. You must sign the certification. You may cross out item 2 of the certification.

4. Other payments. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification unless you have been notified that you have previously given an incorrect TIN. “Other payments” include payments made in the course of the requester’s trade or business for rents, royalties, goods (other than bills for merchandise), medical and health care services (including payments to corporations), payments to a nonemployee for services, payments made in settlement of payment card and third party network transactions, payments to certain fishing boat crew members and fishermen, and gross proceeds paid to attorneys (including payments to corporations).

5. Mortgage interest paid by you, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, qualified tuition program payments (under section 529), IRA, Coverdell ESA, Archer MSA or HSA contributions or distributions, and pension distributions. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.

What Name and Number To Give the Requester

For this type of account:

Give name and SSN of:

1. Individual

The individual

2. Two or more individuals (joint               account)

The actual owner of the account or,if combined funds, the firstindividual on the account1

3. Custodian account of a minor
 (Uniform Gift to Minors Act)

The minor2

4. a. The usual revocable savings
trust (grantor is also trustee)
b. So-called trust account that is
not a legal or valid trust under
state law

The grantor-trustee1

The actual owner1

5. Sole proprietorship or disregarded entity owned by an individual

The owner3

6. Grantor trust filing under Optional Form 1099 Filing Method 1 (see Regulations section 1.671-4(b)(2)(i)(A))

The grantor*

For this type of account:

Give name and EIN of:

7. Disregarded entity not owned by an individual

The owner

8. A valid trust, estate, or pension trust

Legal entity4

9. Corporation or LLC electing
corporate status on Form 8832 or Form 2553

The corporation

10. Association, club, religious, charitable, educational, or other tax-exempt organization

The organization

11. Partnership or multi-member LLC

The partnership

12. A broker or registered nominee

The broker or nominee

13. Account with the Department of Agriculture in the name of a public entity (such as a state or local government, school district, or prison) that receives agricultural program payments

The public entity

14. Grantor trust filing under the Form 1041 Filing Method or the Optional Form 1099 Filing Method 2 (see Regulations section 1.671-4(b)(2)(i)(B))

The trust

1 List first and circle the name of the person whose number you furnish. If only one person on a joint account has an SSN, that person’s number must be furnished.

2 Circle the minor’s name and furnish the minor’s SSN.

3 You must show your individual name and you may also enter your business or DBA name on the “Business name/disregarded entity” name line. You may use either your SSN or EIN (if you have one), but the IRS encourages you to use your SSN.

4 List first and circle the name of the trust, estate, or pension trust. (Do not furnish the TIN of the personal representative or trustee unless the legal entity itself is not designated in the account title.) Also see  Special rules for partnerships on page 2.

*Note. Grantor also must provide a Form W-9 to trustee of trust.

Note. If no name is circled when more than one name is listed, the number will be considered to be that of the first name listed.

Secure Your Tax Records from Identity Theft

Identity theft occurs when someone uses your personal information such as your name, SSN, or other identifying information, without your permission, to commit fraud or other crimes. An identity thief may use your SSN to get a job or may file a tax return using your SSN to receive a refund.

To reduce your risk:

• Protect your SSN,

• Ensure your employer is protecting your SSN, and

• Be careful when choosing a tax preparer.

If your tax records are affected by identity theft and you receive a notice from the IRS, respond right away to the name and phone number printed on the IRS notice or letter.

If your tax records are not currently affected by identity theft but you think you are at risk due to a lost or stolen purse or wallet, questionable credit card activity or credit report, contact the IRS Identity Theft Hotline at 1-800-908-4490 or submit Form 14039.

For more information, see Publication 4535, Identity Theft Prevention and Victim Assistance.

Victims of identity theft who are experiencing economic harm or a system problem, or are seeking help in resolving tax problems that have not been resolved through normal channels, may be eligible for Taxpayer Advocate Service (TAS) assistance. You can reach TAS by calling the TAS toll-free case intake line at 1-877-777-4778 or TTY/TDD 1-800-829-4059.

Protect yourself from suspicious emails or phishing schemes.  Phishing is the creation and use of email and websites designed to mimic legitimate business emails and websites. The most common act is sending an email to a user falsely claiming to be an established legitimate enterprise in an attempt to scam the user into surrendering private information that will be used for identity theft.

The IRS does not initiate contacts with taxpayers via emails. Also, the IRS does not request personal detailed information through email or ask taxpayers for the PIN numbers, passwords, or similar secret access information for their credit card, bank, or other financial accounts.

If you receive an unsolicited email claiming to be from the IRS, forward this message to phishing@irs.gov. You may also report misuse of the IRS name, logo, or other IRS property to the Treasury Inspector General for Tax Administration (TIGTA) at 1-800-366-4484. You can forward suspicious emails to the Federal Trade Commission at: spam@uce.gov or contact them at www.ftc.gov/idtheft or 1-877-IDTHEFT (1-877-438-4338).

Visit IRS.gov to learn more about identity theft and how to reduce your risk.

Privacy Act Notice

Section 6109 of the Internal Revenue Code requires you to provide your correct TIN to persons (including federal agencies) who are required to file information returns with the IRS to report interest, dividends, or certain other income paid to you; mortgage interest you paid; the acquisition or abandonment of secured property; the cancellation of debt; or contributions you made to an IRA, Archer MSA, or HSA. The person collecting this form uses the information on the form to file information returns with the IRS, reporting the above information. Routine uses of this information include giving it to the Department of Justice for civil and criminal litigation and to cities, states, the District of Columbia, and U.S. commonwealths and possessions for use in administering their laws. The information also may be disclosed to other countries under a treaty, to federal and state agencies to enforce civil and criminal laws, or to federal law enforcement and intelligence agencies to combat terrorism. You must provide your TIN whether or not you are required to file a tax return. Under section 3406, payers must generally withhold a percentage of taxable interest, dividend, and certain other payments to a payee who does not give a TIN to the payer. Certain penalties may also apply for providing false or fraudulent information.

		f1_1: 

		f1_2: 

		c1_1: 

		f1_3: 

		c1_7: 

		f1_4: 

		f1_5: 

		f1_6: 

		f1_7: 

		f1_8: 

		f1_9: 

		f1_10: 

		f1_11: 

		f1_12: 

		f1_13: 

		f1_14: 

		f1_15: 









             
    
 

  

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 16, 2015 
 
 
City of Swartz Creek 
Attn: Adam Zettel - City Manager 
8083 Civic Drive  
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
(810) 635-4464 
 
RE: Business Unit # 826779 
 Site Name: Police Post 
 
 
Dear Adam: 
 

This letter agreement (“Letter Agreement”) sets forth the terms of the agreement that is to be memorialized 
between T-Mobile USA Tower LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, by CCTMO LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company, its Attorney in Fact (“Tenant”) and the City of Swartz Creek, a Michigan municipal corporation 
(“Owner”), to modify, among other things, the length of the term in the lease agreement between the Owner and 
Tenant dated December 1, 2005, as may be amended (“Lease”) for property located in Swartz Creek, Genesee 
County, Michigan (“Property”). 

For and in consideration of Fifty Dollars ($50.00) to be paid by Tenant to Owner within 30 days after full execution 
of this Letter Agreement, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Owner and Tenant will enter into an amendment to the Lease (“Lease Amendment”) wherein the term 
of the Lease will be modified.  Section 3 of the Lease provides for five (5) additional terms of five (5) years each 
(each a “Renewal Term”), with a final Lease expiration date of December 27, 2035.  The Lease will be amended by 
adding six (6) Renewal Term(s) of five (5) years each.  Upon execution of the Lease Amendment, the new final 
Lease expiration date will be December 27, 2065. 

2. In addition to the modification described above, the Lease Amendment will further modify the Lease 
to provide: 

a) If Owner receives an offer from any person or entity that owns towers or other wireless 
telecommunications facilities  (or is in the business of acquiring Owner’s interest in the Lease) to 
purchase fee title, an easement, a lease, a license, or any other interest in the Property, or Owner’s 
interest in the Lease, or an option for any of the foregoing, Owner shall provide written notice to 
Tenant of said offer, and Tenant shall have a right of first refusal to acquire such interest on the 
same terms and conditions in the offer, excluding any terms or conditions which are (i) not 
imposed in good faith or (ii) directly or indirectly designed to defeat or undermine Tenant’s 

James Baker 
The Lyle Company 
3140 Gold Camp Drive #30 
Rancho Cordova, CA  95670 
Tel: (248) 417-7771  
Fax: (888) 566-0110 

An Authorized Vendor of 
Crown Castle 

Crown Castle 

1220 Augusta Drive #500 

Houston, TX  77057 

City Council Packet 47 July 13, 2015



possessory or economic interest in the Property.  If Owner's notice covers portions of Owner’s 
parent parcel beyond the Property, Tenant may elect to acquire an interest in only the Property, 
and the consideration shall be pro-rated on an acreage basis.  Owner’s notice shall include the 
prospective buyer’s name, the purchase price and/or other consideration being offered, the other 
terms and conditions of the offer, the due diligence period, the proposed closing date and, if a 
portion of Owner’s parent parcel is to be sold, leased or otherwise conveyed, a description of said 
portion.  If the Owner's notice shall provide for a due diligence period of less than sixty (60) days, 
then the due diligence period shall be extended to be sixty (60) days from exercise of the right of 
first refusal and closing shall occur no earlier than fifteen days thereafter.  If Tenant does not 
exercise its right of first refusal by written notice to Owner given within thirty (30) days, Owner 
may convey the property as described in the Owner's notice.  If Tenant declines to exercise its 
right of first refusal, then the Lease shall continue in full force and effect and Tenant's right of first 
refusal shall survive any such conveyance.  Tenant shall have the right, at its sole discretion, to 
assign the right of first refusal to any person or entity, either separate from an assignment of the 
Lease or as part of an assignment of the Lease.  Such assignment may occur either prior to or after 
Tenant’s receipt of Owner’s notice and the assignment shall be effective upon written notice to 
Owner. 

b) The Lease Amendment shall include a provision stating that Tenant will pay to Owner a one-time 
amount of Five Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($5,000.00) for the full execution of the Lease 
Amendment within 60 days of the full execution of the Lease Amendment. 

3. As further consideration for Tenant entering into the Lease Amendment, during the term of the Lease, 
Tenant shall have an irrevocable option (“Option”) to lease up to a maximum of four hundred (400) square feet of 
real property adjacent to the North side of the existing lease area at a location to be determined at Tenant’s sole 
discretion (“Additional Lease Area”) on the same terms and conditions set forth in the Lease.  If Tenant elects to 
exercise the Option, Tenant shall pay the same rent per square foot for the Additional Lease Area as the rent paid per 
square foot by Tenant for the existing lease area at the time Tenant exercises the Option.  Tenant may exercise the 
Option by providing written notice to Owner at any time.  Within 30 days after Tenant’s exercise of the Option, 
Owner shall execute and deliver an amendment to the Lease, a memorandum of lease and/or amendment, and any 
other documents necessary to grant and record Tenant’s interest in the Additional Lease Area.  In addition, within 30 
days after Tenant’s exercise of the Option, Owner shall obtain and deliver any documentation necessary to free the 
Additional Lease Area from any mortgages, deeds of trust, liens or encumbrances.   

4. Furthermore, the Lease Amendment will modify the Lease to provide that if requested by Tenant, 
Owner will execute, at Tenant's sole cost and expense, all documents required by any governmental authority in 
connection with any development of, or construction on, the Property, including documents necessary to petition the 
appropriate public bodies for certificates, permits, licenses and other approvals deemed necessary by Tenant to 
utilize the Property for the purpose of constructing, maintaining and operating communications facilities.  Owner 
will agree to be named applicant if requested by Tenant.  In furtherance of the foregoing, Owner will appoint Tenant 
as Owner's attorney-in-fact to execute all land use applications, permits, licenses and other approvals on Owner's 
behalf.   

5. Owner shall cooperate in all ways, including but not limited to providing information, signing 
documents and seeking execution by third parties of documents that will remove, subordinate or satisfy any 
mortgages, deeds of trusts, liens or other encumbrances affecting the Property. 

6. Upon receipt of this Letter Agreement evidencing Owner’s acceptance of the terms herein, Tenant 
shall submit this Letter Agreement to its property committee.  If the Letter Agreement is approved by the property 
committee, Tenant shall prepare a Lease Amendment that incorporates the terms and conditions described in this 
Letter Agreement.  In connection therewith, the parties acknowledge and agree that this Letter Agreement is 
intended to summarize the terms and conditions to be included in the Lease Amendment.  Upon receipt of the Lease 
Amendment, Owner hereby agrees to execute the Lease Amendment without any unreasonable delay.   

7. Irrespective of whether the transaction contemplated by this Letter Agreement is consummated, Owner 
and Tenant each will pay its own out-of-pocket expenses. 

City Council Packet 48 July 13, 2015



8. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, Tenant has the complete right to terminate 
this Letter Agreement for any or no reason at any time prior to full execution of the Lease Amendment, without 
damages. 

9. Owner represents and warrants that Owner is duly authorized and has the full power, right and 
authority to enter into this Letter Agreement and to perform all of its obligations under this Letter Agreement and to 
execute and deliver all documents, including but not limited to the Lease Amendment, required by this Letter 
Agreement.  From the date of this Letter Agreement through the date that Owner executes the Lease Amendment, 
Owner shall use its best efforts to ensure that the foregoing representations and warranties shall remain true and 
correct and Owner shall promptly notify Tenant if any representation or warranty is or possibly may not be true or 
correct.  Owner's representations, warranties and covenants shall survive following the full execution of the Lease 
Amendment. 

 

If this Letter Agreement accurately sets forth our understanding regarding the foregoing, please so indicate by 
signing and returning to the undersigned the enclosed copy of this letter. 

 
Owner:   
City of Swartz Creek, 
a Michigan municipal corporation 
 

  

By:     

Name:     

Title:     

Date:     
 
 

Tenant:   
T-Mobile USA Tower LLC,  
a Delaware limited liability company, 
 
By:  CCTMO LLC,  

a Delaware limited liability company,  
its Attorney in Fact  
 

  

By:     

Name:     

Title:     

Date:     
 
 
 

City Council Packet 49 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 50 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 51 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 52 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 53 July 13, 2015



Swartz Creek 1 Rental Polices 

CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
RENTAL REGISTRATION & INSPECTION 

PROCEDURAL RULES & POLICIES 
Adopted by council: ____ __, 2015 

 
Rental Registration Process  

1. City staff sends a notice of required registration to owners of known/suspected rental 
property. Property records indicating non-homestead, along with rental ads, signs, filed 
utility payment affidavits, or common knowledge shall be applied to the creation of the list. 

2. If the owner does not respond to the notice, they will be in violation of the Rental 
Inspection Ordinance and subject to further actions by the city. 

3. When the owner responds to the notice, a record is made and the scheduling process 
will begin. 

4. City staff sends a notice of required inspection to owners of registered rental 
property in Rental Inspection Program at least 30 days prior to the scheduled 
inspection. 

 
Rental Inspection Process 

1. An inspector inspects the property to determine whether there are any property 
maintenance code violations. 

2. If there are no violations, the inspector updates the city's database and issues a 
Certificate of Compliance to the owner.  

3. If there are violations, the inspector will notify the owner in writing. 
4. Violations affecting the property's habitability may result in a repair order or condemnation 

order to immediately correct the violation. 
5. Once the violations are corrected, the owner requests a follow-up inspection within 30 

days. 
6. After a successful inspection, a Certificate of Compliance is issued. 
7. If the violations are not corrected within the time provided, the owner may be issued a 

citation. 
*Note that it may take several weeks for the process to occur before violations are 
corrected. The city reserves the right to establish reasonable time frames for 
correction of violations that account for weather, complexity, and level of risk. 

 
Rental Registration/Inspections Fees 
Registration:  $75 for the first unit, plus $20 for each additional unit on 

a shared premises, with common ownership and 
management, or within recognized apartment complexes 

Follow up inspections: The initial and one follow-up inspection will be performed 
without additional fees. Subsequent inspections shall be 
charged at the rate of $25/unit 

Registration Updates/Amendments:  No charge 
Coverage:  The initial fee covers the registration and first inspection 

and is valid until the resulting certificate of compliance 
expires 

Pro-ration:  There shall be no pro-ration of fees 
 

City Council Packet 54 July 13, 2015



Swartz Creek 2 Rental Polices 

Certificate of Compliance  
Certificates of compliance shall be issued upon passing inspection and shall be valid for a period of no less 
than one calendar year, subject to ongoing compliance. The length of certificate validity shall be based upon 
the following*: 
 

Three year certificate of compliance: No hazards, no critical issues, and fewer than three qualifying 
observations are noted during the initial inspection. 
 
Two year certificate of compliance: No hazards, one or two critical issues, and/or six or fewer 
qualifying observations are noted during the initial inspection. 
 
One year certificate of compliance: Any hazards, three or more critical issues, and/or more than six 
qualifying observations are noted during the initial inspection. 

 
*”Hazards”, “critical issues”, and “qualifying observations” shall be notated on the inspection form. For 
example, no running water would qualify as a hazard, a minor infestation may constitute a critical issue, 
and presence of a minor leak may constitute a qualifying observation. 

City Council Packet 55 July 13, 2015



Flowchart of Rental Inspection Process  

Viess 
Identify Rental 

Properties 

Program Mailing 
(Admin Office) 

 
Track Registrations 

Received 

Registration             
Received 

30 Day Notice of 
Inspection (Admin Office) 

Non Compliance 

Notice and Order      
Issued By                 

Building Inspector 

(Optional) Appeal To 
City Council  

RE-Inspection For 
Compliance By 
Building Inspector 

Complete Inspection 
City Building Official  

 

Compliance 

Registration Not 
Returned 

Final Notice of 
Registration Required 

Compliance 

Issue Certificate of 
Compliance 

w/Established 
Compliance Period 

Schedule Certificate 
Expiration Reminder  

Appeal Hearing 

Findings Not   
Affirmed 

Findings       
Affirmed 

Non Compliance 

 

Proceed With 
Violation Process As 

Stated In Section 
106.3 of the IPMC   

City Council Packet 56 July 13, 2015



(Rental Registration Letter) 
 
Dear Rental Property Owner: 

On (DATE) the City of Swartz Creek City Council adopted an ordinance establishing 
registration and inspection requirements for rental housing. This program is intended to 
secure and improve the quality of rental properties within the city. The program 
establishes minimum standards for rental properties and ensures rental units meet 
existing housing laws. The program imposes a registration fee of $75.00 for the 
first unit registered per premises and $20.00 for additional units on a 
shared premises, under common ownership/management. The ordinance applies 
to all property owners of rental property in the City of Swartz Creek.  

Registration of Property Information 
All rental owners must provide emergency contact information regarding their rental 
properties. This information will be used by city officials to contact the owner and/or 
manager in case an emergency occurs at the property. A registration form is enclosed 
and must be returned no later than 90 days after the date of this letter. You may copy 
the enclosed for additional registration forms.  

Please submit a SEPARATE registration form for each rental property you 
own. 

Inspections of Rental Units 
Beginning (DATE) all residential rental units must undergo inspections to ensure they 
meet existing housing standards. Rental owners will be contacted by city administration 
to schedule a mutually agreed upon time when the unit will be accessible for 
inspection. The inspection will be based on compliance with the International Property 
Maintenance Code. 
 
Failure to register your property with the City's Rental Housing Inspection Program 
may result in enforcement action by the city.  

Sincerely, 

City Council Packet 57 July 13, 2015



SWARTZ CREEK CITY 
RENTAL REGISTRATION FORM 

Rental Property Address: __________________________________ Apt#____________ 

For multiple units under common ownership, common management, AND located on a common 
premises, please include additional unit information below or attach a list of all units by address and 
number for larger complexes.  

OWNER INFORMATION: 

 

Building Owner's name: ______________________________________________________________ 

Owner's address (No PO Boxes):_______________________________________________________ 

City: _______________________________________   State: _____________ Zip: ______________ 

Telephone number: (______) _______-___________ EXT: _______ 

Cell # (______) _______-___________ EMAIL: ___________________________________________ 

AUTHORIZED AGENT: 

 

Owner's Agent's name: _______________________________________________________________ 

Agent's Address: ____________________________________________________________________ 

Agent's telephone number: (______) _______-___________ 

Office number: (______) ______-_________ Emergency 24-hr. number: (______) ______-________ 

MULTI-UNIT-PREMISES IDENTIFICATION (identifying letter, number, etc.): 
 
Unit 2:______ Unit 3:______   Unit 4:______ Unit 5:______ Unit 6:______Unit 7:______ Unit 8:______  

The owner hereby permits inspections of his/her rental properties by officials or agents of the city and affirms 
that all tenants of the subject properties have been informed of the regulations contained in this article and of 
inspections of the rental properties, including common areas, by authorized City officials.  All leases executed 
after the effective date of this article shall contain a provision requiring the tenant(s) to consent to such 
inspection upon notice as provided in this article.  

Amount Enclosed ($75 for first unit, and $20 for additional qualifying units on premises): $________ 

 

_________________________________________  ___________________________ 

Owner or Legal Representative     Date 

City Council Packet 58 July 13, 2015



Rental Inspection Report 

DATE: _________Time: _________ Inspector: ______________________ 

IDENTIFICATION: 

Property Address _______________________________________________________  

Name of Property Owner ______________________________________________ 

Property Owner Address _______________________________________________ 

City/State/Zip __________________________________________________________ 
Phone __________________________ Cell __________________________________ 

    IPMC                               Violation            Remarks/Comments 
 
Exterior: 
302.1 Sanitation.                                          Y/ N /NA 

302.2 Grading and drainage.  Y/  N / NA 

302.3 Sidewalks and driveways. Y/  N / NA 

302.4 Weeds.    Y / N /NA 

302.7 Accessory structures.  Y/  N/ NA 

302.8 Motor vehicles.   Y/  N / NA 

303.1 Swimming pools.   Y/  N / NA 

304.3 Premises identification  Y/  N / NA 

304.4 Structural members  Y/  N / NA 

304.5 Foundation walls   Y/  N / NA 

304.6 Exterior walls   Y/  N / NA 

304.7 Roofs and drainage.  Y/  N / NA 

304.10 Stairways, decks, porches Y/  N / NA 

304.11 Chimneys and towers  Y/  N / NA 

304.12 Handrails and guards.  Y/  N / NA 

304.13 Window glazing   Y/  N / NA 

304.14 Insect screens.   Y/  N / NA 

304.15 Doors.    Y/  N / NA 

604.3 Electrical system hazards. Y/  N / NA 

Additional comments: 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

City Council Packet 59 July 13, 2015



Bedroom:                                         
304.13 Window glazing   Y/  N / NA 
304.14 Insect screens.   Y/  N / NA 

305.3 Interior surfaces.   Y/  N / NA 
305.4 Walking surfaces.  Y/  N / NA 

305.6 Interior doors.   Y/  N / NA 

308.1 Infestation.   Y/  N / NA 

604.3 Electrical system hazards. Y/  N / NA 

704.2 Smoke alarms.   Y/  N / NA 
Additional comments: 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Bathroom: 
304.14 Insect screens.   Y/  N / NA 
304.13 Window glazing   Y/  N / NA 

305.3 Interior surfaces.   Y/  N / NA 

305.4 Walking surfaces.  Y/  N / NA 

308.1 Infestation   Y/  N / NA 

502 Required Facilities 

 --Bath tub present.  Y/  N / NA 

 --Water closet present  Y/  N / NA 

 --Lavatory present  Y/  N / NA 

505 Water system 

 -- leaks    Y/  N / NA 

 --hot water   Y/  N / NA 

 --cold water   Y/  N / NA 

604.3 Electrical system hazards. Y/  N / NA 

Additional comments: 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Living Room: 
304.13 Window glazing   Y/  N / NA 

304.14 Insect screens.   Y/  N / NA 

305.3 Interior surfaces.   Y/  N / NA 

305.4 Walking surfaces.  Y/  N / NA 

305.6 Interior doors.   Y/  N / NA 

City Council Packet 60 July 13, 2015



308.1 Infestation.   Y/  N / NA 

604.3 Electrical system hazards. Y/  N / NA 

Additional comments: 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Kitchen: 
 304.13 Window glazing  Y/  N / NA 

304.14 Insect screens.   Y/  N / NA 
305.3 Interior surfaces.   Y/  N / NA 

305.4 Walking surfaces.  Y/  N / NA 

305.6 Interior doors.   Y/  N / NA 

307.1 Rubbish or garbage  Y/  N / NA 

308.1 Infestation.   Y/  N / NA 

404.7 Food preparation    

 -- Refrigerator present  Y/  N / NA 

502 Required Facilities 

        -- Kitchen sink present  Y/  N / NA 

505 Water system 

 -- leaks    Y/  N / NA 

 --hot water   Y/  N / NA 

 --cold water 

604.3 Electrical system hazards. Y/  N / NA 

Additional comments: 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Laundry Room: 
304.13 Window glazing   Y/  N / NA 

304.14 Insect screens.   Y/  N / NA 
305.3 Interior surfaces.   Y/  N / NA 

305.4 Walking surfaces.  Y/  N / NA 

305.6 Interior doors.   Y/  N / NA 

308.1 Infestation.   Y/  N / NA 

403.5 Clothes dryer exhaust.  Y/  N / NA 

604.3 Electrical system hazards. Y/  N / NA 

City Council Packet 61 July 13, 2015



Additional comments: 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Dining Room:  
304.13 Window glazing   Y/  N / NA 

304.14 Insect screens.   Y/  N / NA 

305.3 Interior surfaces.   Y/  N / NA 

305.4 Walking surfaces.  Y/  N / NA 

305.6 Interior doors.   Y/  N / NA 

308.1 Infestation.   Y/  N / NA 

604.3 Electrical system hazards. Y/  N / NA 

Additional comments: 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 

Basement 
304.4 Structural members  Y/  N / NA 

304.5 Foundation walls   Y/  N / NA 

304.16 Basement hatchways.  Y/  N / NA 

305.5 Handrails and guards.  Y/  N / NA 

305.6 Interior doors.   Y/  N / NA 

307.1 Rubbish or garbage  Y/  N / NA 

308.1 Infestation.   Y/  N / NA 

403.5 Clothes dryer exhaust.  Y/  N / NA 

604.3 Electrical system hazards. Y/  N / NA 

704.2 Smoke alarms.   Y/  N / NA 

Additional comments: 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Hallway/Stairway 

305.3 Interior surfaces.   Y/  N / NA 

305.4 Walking surfaces.  Y/  N / NA 

City Council Packet 62 July 13, 2015



305.5 Handrails and guards.  Y/  N / NA 

305.6 Interior doors.   Y/  N / NA 

308.1 Infestation.    Y/  N / NA 

604.3 Electrical system hazards. Y/  N / NA 

704.2 Smoke alarms.   Y/  N / NA 

Additional comments: 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Equipment: 
505.4 Water heating facilities.  Y/  N / NA 

602.3 Heat supply.   Y/  N / NA 

603.1 Mechanical appliances.  Y/  N / NA 

604.3 Electrical system hazards. Y/  N / NA 

 Additional comments: 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                     

City Council Packet 63 July 13, 2015



CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
RENTAL INSPECTION 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE 
 

RENTAL ADDRESS_________________________________________ APT #______________                                                  

INSPECTION DATE: ___/___/______         EXPIRATION DATE: ___/___/______   

LANDLORD NAME _____________________________________________________________ 

 

This is to CERTIFY the above described dwelling unit meets the minimum 
requirements of the City of Swartz Creek Rental Ordinance. 

The unit(s) passed the inspection and will be granted a ______ year compliance 
period subject to performance and ordinance requirements.  

Based upon policies in effect at this time, the unit(s) are due for registration 
affirmation and inspection on or about ___/___/______. 

 

                                                                     __________________________ 
                                                                                 
                                                                              HOUSING INSPECTOR 

City Council Packet 64 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 65 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 66 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 67 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 68 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 69 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 70 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 71 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 72 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 73 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 74 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 75 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 76 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 77 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 78 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 79 July 13, 2015



07/01/2015                                    CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK                                              

                                                         CHECK DATE FROM 06/01/2015 ‐ 06/30/2015                                              

Check Date Check Vendor Name Description Amount

Bank GEN CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNT

06/04/2015 40509 ACE‐SAGINAW PAVING COMPANY COLD PATCH 618.32

06/04/2015 40510 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL MATS, SUPPLIES 32.20

UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 102.33

134.53

06/04/2015 40511 COMCAST BUSINESS 6/1‐6/30/15 PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING 147.80

06/04/2015 40512 DENNIS J BITTNER ELMS PARK/LOCAL STREETS 1,617.00

06/04/2015 40513 DENNIS MITCHELL TREE TRIM & REMOVAL 2,675.00

06/04/2015 40514 FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INSUR/EYEMED JUNE 2015 VISION‐RETIREES(6)/COBRA(1) 38.83

06/04/2015 40515 FUNTASTIC INFLATABLES EML/MOVIE NIGHT 6/26/15 150.00

06/04/2015 40516 GILL ROYS HARDWARE ROLLER COVER 3.79

SOAP/CARPET CLEANER/HUMIDIFIER TREATMNT 24.14

RED REFLECTIVE TAPE 4.59

AA & AAA BATTERIES 14.58

60# MORTAR MIX 9.98

2 PK MOUSE TRAP (2) 9.58

2 PK LINE MARKING COVERS 3.99

3 PK ROLLER COVERS/BRUSH (2) 26.17

YELLOW PAINT/BOWL CLNR/LINE MARKNG CVRS 34.57

GREEN MARKING PAINT (2) 13.98

13 GAL GARBAGE BAGS 5.99

BACK SUPPORT BELT 17.99

EPOXY SYRINGE 5.99

ADJUSTABLE BALLCOCK 10.99

YELLOW TRAFFIC PAINT 27.99

KEY (1)/BLACK MULCH (4) 15.21

10 PK STRETCH CORD 9.99

YELLOW TRAFFIC PAINT 27.99

X‐LG BACK SUPPORT BELT 17.99

2 PK GLOVES/SOAP (2)/YELLOW TRAFFIC PNT 37.16

YELLOW TRAFFIC PAINT 27.99

YELLOW TRAFFIC PAINT 27.99

SINGLE CUT KEY (2) 3.78

SINGLE CUT KEY (1) 1.89

YELLOW TRAFFIC PAINT 27.99

YELLOW TRAFFIC PAINT 27.99

80 PR FOAM EAR PLUGS 19.99

YELLOW & RED RUST SPRAY PAINT 14.98

3.5 LB REBAR TIE WIRE 7.99

RED REFLECTORS 2.59

150W BULB 25.99

NUTS, BOLTS, SCREWS 0.90

150W BULB 25.99

RETURN RED REFLECTIVE TAPE (4.59)

RETURN LARGE BACK SUPPORT BELT (17.99)

MAY 2015 DISCOUNT (49.23)

466.91

06/04/2015 40517 HEADSETS.COM WIRELESS HEADSETS SYSTEM 428.95

06/04/2015 40518 INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS P3015N LASERJET PRINTER 599.99

56 GAL TRASH BAGS (4) 211.56

TRASH BAGS (1)/KITCHEN TOWELS (2) 126.87

TISSUE (2)/LINER (6) 522.42

RETURN LINERS (5) (338.70)

City Council Packet 80 July 13, 2015



1,122.14

06/04/2015 40519 JOSE A MIRELES MOW & TRIM CITY PROPERTIES/RESIDENT (5) 1,000.00

06/04/2015 40520 KCI POSTAGE SUMMER 2015 TAX BILLS 656.20

06/04/2015 40521 KLEE MFG & DIST FLAGS (2)/40 FT ROPE/CITY HALL 181.60

06/04/2015 40522 LANDMARK APPRAISAL CO JUNE 2015 ASSESSOR SERVICES OCT 1 2014‐J 2,370.48

06/04/2015 40523 MI MUNICIPAL WORKERS COMP FUND 7/1/15‐6/30/16 WORKERS COMP INS 19,446.00

06/04/2015 40524 RBM CONSULTING LLC ELECTION EQUIP MAINT 7/1/15‐6/30/16 1,075.00

06/04/2015 40525 REV. NANCY MCGOWAN‐MILLER DEPOSIT REFUND ELMS PARK 5/24/15 100.00

06/04/2015 40526 ROGER MAUSOLF UB REFUND FOR 5222 WORCHESTER 87.42

06/04/2015 40527 SUBURBAN AUTO SUPPLY AIR FILTER 13.99

06/04/2015 40528 SWARTZ CREEK AREA SENIOR CITZ. HALF COST OF EXTERIOR CAMERA/SR CENTER 344.50

06/04/2015 40529 SWARTZ CREEK ELEVATOR GRASS SEED 50# 90.00

06/04/2015 40530 VERIZON WIRELESS MAY 2015 MONTHLY INVOICE 374.22

06/11/2015 40531 ACE OUTDOOR SERVICES LLC MASON SAND 110.00

06/11/2015 40532 ACE‐SAGINAW PAVING COMPANY COLD PATCH 623.04

06/11/2015 40533 AMANDA GRULKE ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 5/30/15 100.00

06/11/2015 40534 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL MATS, SUPPLIES 32.20

UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 102.33

134.53

06/11/2015 40535 BELL EQUIPMENT CO EXT. BROOM (1)/SIDE BROOM 4 PIECE (2) 464.00

06/11/2015 40536 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/1‐5/31/15 4524 MORRISH RD 42.32

06/11/2015 40537 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/1‐5/31/15 TRAFFIC LIGHTS 402.81

06/11/2015 40538 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/1‐5/31/15 SIRENS 26.71

06/11/2015 40539 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/1‐5/31/15 ELMS PARKING LOT 28.70

06/11/2015 40540 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/5‐6/2/15 E 8011 MILLER RD 22.75

06/11/2015 40541 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/2‐6/2/15 WINSHALL RESTROOMS 46.55

06/11/2015 40542 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/2‐6/2/15 A 8499 MILLER RD 23.97

06/11/2015 40543 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/5‐6/2/15 A 8059 FORTINO DR 81.20

06/11/2015 40544 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/5‐6/2/15 A 8100 CIVIC DR 1,088.38

06/11/2015 40545 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/1‐6/1/15 A 9099 MILLER RD 36.81

06/11/2015 40546 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/5‐6/2/15 A 8095 CIVIC DR 834.69

06/11/2015 40547 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/2‐6/2/15 A 5361 WINSHALL DR 22.61

06/11/2015 40548 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/2‐6/2/15 E 8301 CAPPY LN 566.12

06/11/2015 40549 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/2‐6/2/15 A 5257 WINSHALL DR 22.61

06/11/2015 40550 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/5‐6/2/15 A 8083 CIVIC DR 763.30

06/11/2015 40551 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/5‐6/2/15 E 5121 MORRISH RD 1,314.56

06/11/2015 40552 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/6‐6/4/15 A 6425 MILLER PARK & RIDE 84.82

06/11/2015 40553 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/7‐6/4/15 E 4125 ELMS RD 42.39

06/11/2015 40554 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/7‐6/4/15 A 4125 ELMS RD PAVILION 25.30

06/11/2015 40555 CONSUMERS ENERGY 5/22‐6/2/15 A 4510 MILLER 11.00

06/11/2015 40556 DAVID KRUEGER SMALL CITIES MTG 6/3/15 DINNER/MILEAGE 49.10

06/11/2015 40557 FAMILY FARM AND HOME INC GLOVES (2) 26.48

06/11/2015 40558 FLINT WELDING SUPPLY FAX/CYLINDER COMPRESSED OXYGEN 5.00

06/11/2015 40559 GENESEE CTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER NPDES PHASE II IMPL FEES 4/1‐6/30/15 709.57

06/11/2015 40560 INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS TONER FOR HP3015 147.99

06/11/2015 40561 JOSE A MIRELES MOW & TRIM CITY PROPERTIES RESIDENT (1) 850.00

06/11/2015 40562 MCLAREN MEDICAL MANAGEMENT INC TREATMENT K SZMANSKY 5/22/15 439.50

06/11/2015 40563 MID MICHIGAN MANUFACTURING JETTED SEWER LINES ON MILLER AND HELMSLE 650.00

06/11/2015 40564 RICHARD ABRAMS SMALL CITIES MTG 6/3/15 DINNER/MILEAGE 54.68

06/11/2015 40565 RWS OF MID MICHIGAN MAY 2015 FY15 GARBAGE/RECYCLING/YARD WAS 20,847.36

06/11/2015 40566 SIMEN FIGURA & PARKER PLC MAY 2015 GEN'L/TRAFFIC/ORDIN 1,983.75

06/11/2015 40567 STATE OF MICHIGAN DEPT TRANS SIGNAL ENERGY 1/1‐3/31/15 44.78

06/11/2015 40568 SUBURBAN AUTO SUPPLY GREASE FITTING (2) 1.90

06/11/2015 40569 SUPER FLITE OIL CO INC 5/1‐5/31/15 FUEL USAGE ‐ POLICE 1,832.05

06/11/2015 40570 SUPER FLITE OIL CO INC 5/1‐5/31/15 FUEL USAGE ‐ DPW 1,206.86

06/11/2015 40571 SWARTZ CREEK AREA FIRE DEPT. MAY 2015 MONTHLY RUNS 3,059.43

06/11/2015 40572 VIEW NEWSPAPER GROUP BUDGET PUBLIC HEARING 5/14/15 42.30

PARKING LOT BIDS 5/21/15 42.30

84.60

City Council Packet 81 July 13, 2015



06/11/2015 40573 JUANITA AGUILAR PLANTE MORAN GOVT CLIENT TRAIN 6/10/15 97.75

06/18/2015 40574 ACME BUILDING MATERIALS SOFFIT (4)/VINYL CHANNEL (40)/CAULK (2) 222.50

06/18/2015 40575 AMERICAN MESSAGING JUNE 2015 8108332563 8108331159 26.04

06/18/2015 40576 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL MATS, SUPPLIES 32.20

UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 116.80

149.00

06/18/2015 40577 BRIANNE GASKINS ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 6/7/15 #3 100.00

06/18/2015 40578 CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK REIMB PETTY CASH 154.44

06/18/2015 40579 DELAWN HOLLIDAY ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 6/6/15 #4 100.00

06/18/2015 40580 DELTA DENTAL PLAN JULY 15 DENTAL‐RETIREE(7)/COBRA(1)/EST T 542.86

06/18/2015 40581 JOSE A MIRELES MOW & TRIM CITY PROPERTIES RESIDENT (3) 875.00

MOW WINSHALL PARK 200.00

1,075.00

06/18/2015 40582 LEAH SZABO ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 6/7/15 #1 100.00

06/18/2015 40583 LIQUIFORCE SEWER SERVICES SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM INSPECTIONS AND RE 99,511.50

06/18/2015 40584 LORI ANTHONY ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 6/6/15 #1 100.00

06/18/2015 40585 MY‐CAN LLC PORTAJON RENTAL 5/27‐6/24/15 ELMS(2)/WIN 290.00

06/18/2015 40586 OHM ADVISORS MILLER RD MORRISH TO ELMS THRU 5/16/15 3,943.26

06/18/2015 40587 OHM ADVISORS MILLER RD‐TALLMADGE TO DYE THRU 5/16/15 4,622.48

06/18/2015 40588 SUE BECKMAN ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 6/7/15 #2 100.00

06/18/2015 40589 SWANK MOTION PICTURE INC. DVD THE LORAX MOVIE NIGHT 6/12/15 351.00

06/18/2015 40590 SWARTZ CREEK ELEVATOR TEMPO WEED KILLER SPRAY 50.00

06/18/2015 40591 TARNISHA RANDOLPH ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 6/6/15 #2 100.00

06/18/2015 40592 UNUM LIFE INSURANCE JULY 15 RETIREE LIFE CLOLINGER/SHANNON 18.63

06/19/2015 40593 CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK REIMB PETTY CASH 149.45

06/19/2015 40594 DONALD KORTH NEW HP COMPUTER & AOC MONITOR 599.76

06/25/2015 40595 ACE OUTDOOR SERVICES LLC RED MULCH 155.00

06/25/2015 40596 ALICIA BROWN ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 6/13/15 #2 100.00

06/25/2015 40597 ANDREA FLORES ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 6/13/15 #3 100.00

06/25/2015 40598 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL MATS, SUPPLIES 32.20

UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 102.33

134.53

06/25/2015 40599 BLUE CARE NETWORK‐EAST MI JULY 2015 RETIREE MED INS/KELLY 778.76

JULY 2015 RETIREE MED INS/O'BRIEN 1,361.59

JULY 2015 RETIREE MED INS/SHANNON 818.12

JULY 2015 RETIREE MED INS/CLOLINGER 1,370.06

JULY 2015 COBRA INS/BUECHE 793.14

5,121.67

06/25/2015 40600 BRADYS BUSINESS SYSTEMS COPY MACH MAINT AGREEMNT 5/15‐6/14/15 77.96

COPY MACH MAINT AGREEMNT 6/15‐7/14/15 100.65

178.61

06/25/2015 40601 BRADYS BUSINESS SYSTEMS COPY MACH MAINT AGREEMNT 3/21‐6/20/15 1,017.91

06/25/2015 40602 BRENDA KUNKLE ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 6/13/15 #1 100.00

06/25/2015 40603 COMCAST BUSINESS 6/26‐7/25/15 CITY HALL 286.75

06/25/2015 40604 COOKS DIESEL RV & TRUCK REPAIR OIL PRESSR GAUGE/CITY HORN/TAIL LT ASSY 314.12

06/25/2015 40605 CREEK AUTO SERVICES LLC LOF MONTHLY MAINT 12‐144 34.95

IGN COIL‐NEW SPARK PLUGS 13‐384 288.75

LOF MONTHLY MAINT 13‐384 34.95

LOF MONTHLY MAINT 09‐226 34.95

City Council Packet 82 July 13, 2015



393.60

06/25/2015 40606 DEB KARSOE ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 6/14/15 #4 100.00

06/25/2015 40607 DONALD KORTH UPDATE WRKSTNS CITY HALL & POLICE 300.00

06/25/2015 40608 DYNAMIC TESTING PRE‐TRIP TEST CDL‐B 100.00

06/25/2015 40609 FUNTASTIC INFLATABLES EML/MOVIE NIGHT 7/10/15 150.00

06/25/2015 40610 GALLS SLIM JIM WEDGES (2) 32.93

06/25/2015 40611 GEN CTY ROAD COMMISSION MAY 2015 SIGNAL MAINT MILLER @ FAIRCHILD 352.31

06/25/2015 40612 GENESEE CTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER COMM/READY TO SERVE 4/29‐5/27/15 104,254.95

06/25/2015 40613 INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS BATH TISSUE (2) 68.98

PRINTER CARTRIDGE/CABLE/STAPLER 200.97

LEGAL PADS/TONER 87.67

CERTIF PAPER‐CAMP 911 49.41

RETURN BATH TISSUE (2) (115.98)

291.05

06/25/2015 40614 JACK DOHENY COMPANIES INC CONFINED SPACE TRAIN THIELL/SANDFORD 5/1 300.00

06/25/2015 40615 JASMINE BALL ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 6/14/15 #3 100.00

06/25/2015 40616 JASON HENSLEY ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 6/14/15 #1 100.00

06/25/2015 40617 JEFF PINKSTON PC DOG FOOD K‐9 60.42

06/25/2015 40618 JOSE A MIRELES MOW & TRIM CITY PROPERTIES 800.00

06/25/2015 40619 KENDALL PRINTING DAILIES 123.18

06/25/2015 40620 LEN THOMAS ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 6/13/15 #4 100.00

06/25/2015 40621 MICHIGAN POLICE EQUIPMENT COMPANY SIG SAUER GRIPS & SCREWS 23.00

PRACTICE RIFLE AMMO 3000 RNDS 927.00

DUTY RIFLE AMMO 1000 RNDS 430.00

1,380.00

06/25/2015 40622 MIKE WOOD ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 6/12/15 #2 100.00

06/25/2015 40623 OFFICE DEPOT CREDIT PLAN LED 20" MONITOR 89.99

06/25/2015 40624 RHONDA LEBBIN ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 6/14/15 #2 100.00

06/25/2015 40625 SPARTAN BARRICADING & TRAFFIC CONTR BARRICADE (25)/MINOR TRAFFIC DEVICES 1,615.00

06/25/2015 40626 STATE OF MICHIGAN‐DEQ WTR DRINKING WATER LAB TESTING 208.00

06/25/2015 40627 SUBURBAN AUTO SUPPLY TAIL LIGHT 2.49

06/25/2015 40628 SWANK MOTION PICTURE INC. DVD ET MOVIE NIGHT 6/26/15 351.00

06/25/2015 40629 SWARTZ CREEK SCHOOLS 10 CASES COPY PAPER 256.80

06/25/2015 40630 TASER INTERNATIONAL BATTERIES, CARTRIDGES FOR TASERS 721.96

06/25/2015 40631 VERMEER OF MICHIGAN BLADE SHARPENING/CHIPPER 46.01

06/25/2015 40632 VILLAGE CLEANERS MAY UNIFORM CLEANING 101.75

06/25/2015 40633 WOODS COLLISION REPLACE REAR BUMPER/CAR WASH DAMAGE 854.90

06/26/2015 40634 STATE OF MICHIGAN‐DEPART. TREA MARI‐DAN 2014 TAX IN LIEU 12,834.91

06/30/2015 40635 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL MATS, SUPPLIES 32.20

UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 102.33

134.53

06/30/2015 40636 BASIL AND CORALENE BLOSS SUPP MED INS MAY 2014‐JUNE 2015 4,589.26

06/30/2015 40637 CHELSEA LIVINGSTON ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 6/20/15 #3 100.00

06/30/2015 40638 CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 3/20‐6/20/15 UB 4125 ELMS 302.82

3/20‐6/20/15 UB 5121 MORRISH 159.61

3/20‐6/20/15 UB 5363 WINSHALL 287.73

3/20‐6/20/15 UB 8059 FORTINO 270.88

3/20‐6/20/15 UB 8083 CIVIC 477.09

3/20‐6/20/15 UB 8095 CIVIC 231.64

3/20‐6/20/15 UB 8100 CIVIC  618.15

2,347.92

City Council Packet 83 July 13, 2015



06/30/2015 40639 DONALD KORTH INSTALL NEW HP COMPUTER AT POLICE 200.00

06/30/2015 40640 ED OR APRIL MARTINEZ ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 6/20/15 #4 100.00

06/30/2015 40641 GEN CTY ROAD COMMISSION MAY 2015 S‐MTCE & OPERATIONS 400.03

06/30/2015 40642 GENESEE COUNTY TREASURER PER RESO 150622‐12 TAX REVERTED PROP 45,046.46

06/30/2015 40643 GREGORY STACY UB REFUND FOR 5200 WINSHALL 164.22

06/30/2015 40644 INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS TRASH BAGS (2)/TOWELS (2) 109.70

06/30/2015 40645 JENNIFER JOHNSON REFUND FOR ELMS PARK CANCEL 8/15/15 200.00

06/30/2015 40646 JENNIFER MCINTYRE ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 6/20/15 #2 100.00

06/30/2015 40647 NORTH BAPTIST CHURCH ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 6/20/15 #1 100.00

06/30/2015 40648 OHM ADVISORS MILLER RD MORRISH TO ELMS THRU 6/13/15 2,149.97

06/30/2015 40649 OHM ADVISORS MILLER RD TALLMADGE TO DYE THRU 6/13/15 20,016.92

06/30/2015 40650 ROWE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CO UPDT RECOMND PVMNT RPRS RUSSELL/LINDSEY 337.50

06/30/2015 40651 SPRINGBROOK EAST CONDO ASSOC  PROCEED SALE LOTS 041,043,053,054‐056  37,011.94

06/30/2015 40652 U. S. POST OFFICE POSTAGE FOR UTILITY BILLS JULY 2015 699.15

GEN TOTALS:

Total of 144 Disbursements: 431,992.22

City Council Packet 84 July 13, 2015



07/06/2015                            REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK                                      

                                                     PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2015                                                      

2014‐15 YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE

AMENDED 06/30/2015 BALANCE % BDGT

GL NUMBER   BUDGET NORMAL (ABNORMAL) NORMAL (ABNORMAL) USED

Fund 101 ‐ General Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 2,620,887.22 2,509,560.26 111,326.96 95.75

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,751,517.94 2,418,552.11 332,965.83 87.90

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (130,630.72)

Fund 202 ‐ Major Street Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 2,068,105.00 336,426.27 1,731,678.73 16.27

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,378,751.00 231,426.35 2,147,324.65 9.73

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (310,646.00)

Fund 203 ‐ Local Street Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 154,846.02 147,369.12 7,476.90 95.17

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 154,260.02 102,009.42 52,250.60 66.13

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 586.00

Fund 226 ‐ Garbage Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 375,434.28 375,711.19 (276.91) 100.07

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 445,291.60 381,559.08 63,732.52 85.69

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (69,857.32)

Fund 248 ‐ Downtown Development Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 74,648.00 77,490.48 (2,842.48) 103.81

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 75,509.00 75,123.38 385.62 99.49

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (861.00)

Fund 265 ‐ Drug Enforcement Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 4,776.51 7,325.85 (2,549.34) 153.37

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,850.60 9,813.26 (1,962.66) 125.00

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (3,074.09)

Fund 350 ‐ City Hall Debt Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 78,625.00 78,622.11 2.89 100.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 80,325.00 79,230.00 1,095.00 98.64

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (1,700.00)

Fund 402 ‐ Fire Equip Replacement Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 20,050.00 20,001.91 48.09 99.76

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 20,050.00

Fund 590 ‐ Water Supply Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 1,673,916.00 1,742,513.14 (68,597.14) 104.10

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,830,014.00 1,481,384.44 348,629.56 80.95

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (156,098.00)

City Council Packet 85 July 13, 2015



Fund 591 ‐ Sanitary Sewer Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 1,200,350.00 1,267,676.34 (67,326.34) 105.61

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,456,600.00 972,156.82 484,443.18 66.74

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (256,250.00)

Fund 661 ‐ Motor Pool Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 243,036.50 244,230.64 (1,194.14) 100.49

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 251,976.36 170,229.40 81,746.96 67.56

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (8,939.86)

Fund 865 ‐ Sidewalks

TOTAL REVENUES 12,500.00 8,814.94 3,685.06 70.52

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,500.00 8,950.94 3,549.06 71.61

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 0.00

Fund 866 ‐ Weed Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 6,350.00 9,950.00 (3,600.00) 156.69

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,400.00 1,335.00 65.00 95.36

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 4,950.00

City Council Packet 86 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 87 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 88 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 89 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 90 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 91 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 92 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 93 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 94 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 95 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 96 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 97 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 98 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 99 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 100 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 101 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 102 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 103 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 104 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 105 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 106 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 107 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 108 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 109 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 110 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 111 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 112 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 113 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 114 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 115 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 116 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 117 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 118 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 119 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 120 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 121 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 122 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 123 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 124 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 125 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 126 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 127 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 128 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 129 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 130 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 131 July 13, 2015



Section 20-10. FENCES AND HEDGES. 
 

(A) A fence is defined as any partition, structure or gate that is erected as a dividing 
marker, barrier or enclosure (excluding hedges as defined below). 

 
(B) A hedge is defined as any bush, shrub or any living green screen of any nature 

that serves as a dividing marker, barrier or enclosure. 
 

(C) Regulations applicable to R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, RM-1, PMSHDD, PUD, O-1, CBD, 
NBD, and GBD. 

 
1. A fence shall not exceed six (6) feet in height in the rear or side lot 

of any parcel; 
 

2. Front yard fences or hedges must be less than fifty percent (50%) 
solid, impervious, or of an obscuring nature above a height of 30” 
above the curb or centerline of the street, and not exceed four (4) 
feet in total height. Front yard fences may not be constructed of 
chain link fence unless such fence is coated or sealed to prevent 
rusting, such as vinyl coated fencing; 

 
3. Fences and hedges in front yards that function as exterior side 

yards must follow front yard height restrictions unless the fence or 
hedge is installed or planted at least 25 feet back from the 
intersection of the front yard and side yard right-of-way lines, no 
less than 20 feet back from the intersection of any driveway or alley 
from a street, and no less than 10 feet back from the intersection of 
any driveway or alley to a sidewalk. All such fences and hedges 
must meet clear vision requirements for the intersections of streets, 
driveways, and sidewalks; 

 
 4. No fence or hedge shall extend across property lines; 

 
5. The finished side of any fence shall face away from the property on 

which the fence is located; 
 

6. No portion of any fence shall be constructed with or contain barbed 
wire, electric current or charge of electricity, glass, spikes or other 
sharp protruding objects; 

 
7. Fences must be maintained so as not to endanger life or property.  

Any fence which, through lack of maintenance or type of 
construction which will obstruct vision so to create a hazard to 
vehicular traffic or pedestrians upon the public streets and/or 
sidewalks shall be deemed a nuisance.   

 
8. Fences shall not be constructed, in whole or in part, with any of the 

following materials: 
 

(a) junk or other debris 

City Council Packet 132 July 13, 2015



(b) scrap building materials or metals  
(c) organic materials known to be poisonous or hazardous to 

human or animal life 
(d) other materials which may be deemed unsafe to person or 

property by the Zoning Administrator or Building Official. 
 

9. No hedge shall be constructed with noxious weeds or grasses, as 
defined by PA 359 of 1941, being MCL 247.62. 

 
 (D) Regulations applicable to industrial districts. 

1. Fences, walls and screens are permitted in the required front, side 
and rear lots provided they do not exceed six (6) feet in the front 
yard and eight (8) feet in the side and rear lots. To preserve open 
space and aesthetic character in the front yard, fences higher than 
four (4) feet must be setback two (2) feet for each additional foot 
above four (4) feet and all front yard fences must be black vinyl 
chain link or decorative in nature.  

2.  In the I-2 zoning district, barbed wire strands are permitted on 
fences six (6) feet or higher on industrial parcels with the barbed 
wire tilted in toward the fenced parcel.  

3. On any corner lot, no fence, wall or screen, whether structural or 
botanical, shall be more than thirty (30) inches above the curb or 
the centerline of the street pavement within twenty-five (25) feet of 
the intersection of the two (2) right-of-way lines, so as to interfere 
with motorists' vision across the corner. 

 (E) The Zoning Administrator or Building Official may require removal, reconstruction, 
or repair of any fence or wall which, in their judgment is dilapidated, unsafe, or a 
threat to the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the City of Swartz Creek.  

 
(F) A permit shall be required for new fence construction, with a fee to be prescribed 

by resolution of the council.  
 
 

City Council Packet 133 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 134 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 135 July 13, 2015

azettel
Text Box

azettel
Rectangle

azettel
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by azettel

azettel
Rectangle

azettel
Callout
Front yard

azettel
Callout
Front yard (exterior side yard)

azettel
Callout
House and driveway



City Council Packet 136 July 13, 2015

azettel
Text Box

azettel
Rectangle

azettel
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by azettel

azettel
Rectangle

azettel
Callout
Front yard

azettel
Callout
Front yard (exterior side yard)

azettel
Callout
House and driveway

azettel
Line

azettel
Callout
Current ord fence



City Council Packet 137 July 13, 2015

azettel
Text Box

azettel
Rectangle

azettel
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by azettel

azettel
Rectangle

azettel
Callout
Front yard

azettel
Callout
Front yard (exterior side yard)

azettel
Callout
House and driveway

azettel
Line

azettel
Callout
Proposed ord fence

azettel
Line

azettel
Callout
Fence must be 25' from this intersection



City Council Packet 138 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 139 July 13, 2015



City Council Packet 140 July 13, 2015


	2015-07-13, Council Mtg Template
	TO:  Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members
	ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS

	2015-6-22 June 22 Council Minutes
	eagle graphics present to city council
	Crown Castle Letter Agreement - 8100 B-Civic Dr. email
	Crown Castle Letter Agreement
	Lift Station
	Lift Station 2
	SC Administrative Policies
	SC Flowchart
	SC reg letter
	SC Rental Registration Form
	SC Inspection Report
	SC Certificate of Compliance
	GCDC Storm Agreement
	Comcast Notice
	Check Register
	June 2015 Rev and Expenditures
	June DPS Reports
	Building Report
	Police Report June
	Bikes on the Bricks
	Consumers Notice
	Consumers
	Clayton Plan Ltr
	SCAFD Notice
	Curb Images 1
	Curb Images 2
	Curb Images 3
	7829
	IMG_0066.JPG
	IMG_0067_2.JPG
	IMG_0068.JPG
	IMG950065.JPG

	Fences
	Yard image 2
	Yard image 3
	Yard image 4
	Yard image
	Yellow Book Notice
	Auction Memo
	GCDC Rate



